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Director, Brian Burkholder
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309
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands

03 6775 1000

Credit Suisse Universal Trust Cayman PIMCO Short Term
Strategy
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Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited
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2021 11
33,172,592.68 143.9
-10,115,720.61 -43.9
23,056,872.07
100.0
2,623
2021 11

317,258.92| 103.38 |32,796,749.46| 104.56 |33,172,592.68 | 143.87

2021 11 10
2021 11
U S TREASURY NOTE 0.75 2024 11 15 AAA | 5.8
CENTRAL NIPPON EXPRESSWY 0.62 2022 15 A 1.5
FED HOME LN BK GLBL BD 1.02 2027 24 AAA | 1.5
FED HOME LN BK GLBL BD 0.90 2027 26 AAA | 1.3
NOMURA HOLDINGS INC SR UNSEC 1.85 2025 16 A 1.3
CHARTER COMM OPT LLC CAP 1.78 2024 BBB 1.3
CIT GROUP INC GLBL SR UNSEC 5.00 2022 15 BBB 1.2
AOZORA BANK SR UNSEC 1.05 2024 BBB 1.2
FED HOME LN BK GLBL BD 1.12 2027 26 AAA | 1.2
RESI 2021 1X Al REGS 0.79 2052 10 AAA | 1.2
10
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S&P S&P
2021 11
2021 11
2020 12 2021 11

236,798,631 2,100,403.86 11.04 98
2020

298,826,177 2,650,588.19 13.16 117
2021
2020 12 250,280,442 2,219,987.52 11.91 106
2021 256,709,971 2,277,017.44 12.04 107
2021 256,918,480 2,278,866.92 12.15 108
2021 255,601,600 2,267,186.19 12.37 110
2021 255,749,105 2,268,494.56 12.62 112
2021 271,205,138 2,405,589.58 12.80 114
2021 271,454,655 2,407,802.79 13.01 115
2021 298,826,177 2,650,588.19 13.16 117
2021 311,858,927 2,766,188.69 13.37 119
2021 316,180,061 2,804,517.14 13.59 121
2021 10 314,154,365 2,786,549.21 13.74 122
2021 11 306,143,383 2,715,491.81 13.22 117
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2019 29 2021
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2019 29
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2021
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
usb usD

2.2 5 6 $ 35,195,015 ¥ 4,004,137 $ 34,351,706 ¥ 3,908,194
2.1 164,530 18,719 189,423 21,551
67,391 7,667 104,059 11,839
2.10 3 3,489,969 397,054 107,024 12,176
2.4 151,000 17,179 440,180 50,079
39,067,905 4,444,756 35,192,392 4,003,838
2.2 5 6 18,459 2,100 984,862 112,048
2.4 3,476,527 395,524 844 96
8.1F 20,188 2,297 19,250 2,190
8.1C 17,177 1,954 34,791 3,958
8.2B 14,622 1,664 3,190 363
2.10 3 13,469 1,532 186,376 21,204
8.1D 9,446 1,075 38,709 4,404

8.1A 7,572 861
8.1B 6,192 704 7,041 801
8.1E 2,365 269 2,750 313
8.2D 270 31 296 34
3,586,287 408,012 1,278,109 145,410

$ 35,481,618 ¥ 4,036,744 $ 33,914,283 ¥ 3,858,428
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
USD USD
FVTPL ™
2.11 7 $  (2,221,625) ¥ (252,754) $  (2,389,313) ¥ (271,832)
2.2 211 7 2,264,170 257,595 (161,864) (18,415)
2.11 22 3 154 18
2.6 (17,669) (2,010) (116, 465) (13,250)
2.6 (5,939) (676) (620) 70
18,959 2,157 (2,668,108) (303,551)
8.1C 180,056 20,485 115,003 13,084
8.10 113,394 12,901 67,085 7,632
8.1F 59,288 6,745 19,250 2,190
8.1A 50,567 5,753 8,382 954
8.28 41,226 4,690 25,205 2,868
8.18 38,865 4,422 34,728 3,951
31,480 3,581 26,817 3,051
23,460 2,669
8.1E 15,610 1,776 13,888 1,580
8.2D 3,240 369 1,017 218
557,186 63,391 312,275 35,528
(538,227) (61,234) (2,980,383) (339,078)
$ (538,227) ¥ (61,234) $  (2,980,383) ¥ (339,078)
(€Y
FVTPL

85/235



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31
usp
2019 29 $ ¥
41,654,189 4,738,997
2.8 (4,759,523) (541,491)
(2,980,383) (339,078)
2020 31 $ 33,914,283 ¥ 3,858,428
14,270,837 1,623,593
2.8 (12,165,275) (1,384,043)
(538,227) (61,234)
2021 31 $ 35,481,618 ¥ 4,036,744
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
usD usD
$ (538,227) ¥ (61,234) $  (2,980,383) ¥ (339,078)
(17,679,965) (2,011,450) (40,794,463) (4,641,186)
18,632,987 2,119,875 7,335,270 834,534
(2,720,189) (309,476) (2,458,828) (279,741)
2,221,625 252,754 2,389,313 271,832
(2,264,170) (257,595) 161,864 18,415
289,180 32,900 (440, 180) (50,079)
36,668 4,172 (104,059) (11,839)
3,475,683 395,428 844 9%
! (28,195) (3,208) 106,027 12,063
1,425,397 162,167 (36,784,595) (4,184,983)
10,887,892 1,238,715 41,547,165 4,726,821
(12,338,182) (1,403,715) (4,573,147) (520, 287)
(1,450,290) (164,999) 36,974,018 4,206,534
(24,893) (2,832) 189,423 21,551
189,423 21,551
2.1 $ 164,530 ¥ 18,719 $ 189,423 ¥ 21,551
$ 22 ¥ 3 3 154 ¥ 18
(€))
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2021 31
1.

2013 12

2019
2019 29
2021 2014 22
2021
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
KY1-9007 190 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town,

Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands

SMBC

usb $
TRY

2021 31 2020 31
5.8 7.9
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2021 31
6 C J
J C
2163 12
32
2021 11 30
2.
IFRS IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 I1AS 27 2012
IFRS 3
FVTPL FVOCI1 IFRS
FVTPL
FVTPL
SPPI
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2021 31

SPP1

FVTPL

SPP1

SPP1
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2021 31
ECL FvoCl
ECL
FVTPL
12
ECL
2021 31
2020
2.1
2021 31 2020 31
2021 2020
$ 13
164,529 189,423
$ 164,530 $ 189,423
2.2
Q)
FVTPL
2021 31 2021 31
$ 33,650,439 $ 33,074,250
1,544,576
$ 35,195,015 $ 33,074,250
2020 31 2020 31
$ 34,146,093 $ 33,528,708
205,613
$ 34,351,706 $ 33,528,708
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2021 31
FVTPL
2021 31
$18,459
2020 31
$984,862
®
©
O)
®
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2021 31

NAV

)
( ) NAV () )

10
2.3
2021

31 2020 31

2.4

2.5

2.6

Q)

®
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2021 31

2.7

2021 31 2020 31

2.8
1AS
32

2021 31 2020 31

2.9
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2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

31

IAS 12

2021 31

2.13

FVTPL

2020

31

2063 12
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2021 31
3.
10
2

2021 31

$ 35,481,618 22,708,548 $ 1.5625

TRY 298,826,177 22,708,548 TRY 13.1592
2020 31

$ 33,914,283 21,455,319 $ 1.5807

TRY 236,798,631 21,455,319 TRY 11.0368
2021 31 2020 31
100
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
2020 31 2021 31
$ 36,894,666 14,270,837 (12,165,275)  $ 39,000,228
2019 29
2020 31
$ 41,654,189 (4,759,523) % 36,894,666
2021 31 2020 31
2020 31 2021 31
21,455,319 9,265,090 (8,011,861) 22,708,548
2019 29
2020 31
24,353,267 (2,897,948) 21,455,319
4.
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2021 31

5.1

Q)

QD)

IMF
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2021 31
2021 31
2021
31
TRY $ $ $ 1,526,117 $ 3,489,969 $ 5,016,086 14.1
1,526,117 3,489,969 5,016,086 14.1
usD 164,530 33,650,439 (3,349,437) 30,465,532 85.9
$ 164,530 $ 33,650,439 $ 1,526,117 $ 140,532 $ 35,481,618 100.0
*
2020 31
2020
31
TRY $ $ $  (779,249) $ 107,024 $ (672,225) (2.0)
(779,249) 107,024 (672,225) .0)
UsD 189,423 34,146,093 250,992 34,586,508 102.0
$ 189,423 $ 34,146,008 $  (779.249) $ 358,016 $ 33,914,283 100.0
*
2021 31 2020 31
2021
TRY +/ 21.77 -/+ $ 1,092,002
2020
TRY +/ 26.01 -/+ $ 174,846
C
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2021 31
)
3
2021 31 2020 31 50
1
823 947

)
2021 31 2020 31

336,504 341,461
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2021 31

2021 31

$ 7,397,314
1,176,981
503,126
56,571,847
801,817
5,632,166
1,319,753
1,417,896
2,201,783
1,702,210
4,296,703
18,260,539
6,606,452
20,866,773
4,977,564
7,457,854
1,207,375
2,714,852
3,779,249
2,553,968
3,011,475
49,259,417
250,257,727
$ 453,974,841
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2021 31

2020 31

$ 3,844,830
1,722,347
4,683,202
31,081,490
795,563
2,129,324
1,304,029
508,679
803,034
1,702,414
3,726,978
11,567,044
459,158
37,248,773
600,223
8,201,924
1,014,289
509,670
5,113,936
2,312,473
3,791,741
3,009,150
63,305,880
218,071,570
1,010,424

$ 408,518,145
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2021 31 2020 31
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2021

31

Aaa
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11.
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2021 31
©
2021 31
$ 3,476,527 $ $ 3,476,527
20,188 20,188
17,177 17,177
13,469 13,469
14,622 14,622
9,446 9,446
7,572 7,572
6,192 6,192
2,365 2,365
270 270
$ 3,567,828 $ $ 3,567,828
2020 31
$186,376 $ $186,376
38,709 38,709
34,791 34,791
19,250 19,250
7,041 7,041
3,190 3,190
2,750 2,750
844 844
296 296
$293,247 $ $293,247
15
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31
$ 34,342,997 $ $ $ 34,342,997
35,869,114 35,869,114
2020 31
$ 70,701,925 $ 34,037,272 $ $ 104,739,197
70,341,980 33,617,968 103,959,948
2021 31 2020 31
©
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2021 31

5.2

Q)

®

©

©
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2021 31
2021 31
cs 1,544,576 $ 1,544,576
1,544,576 $ 1,544,576
cs 1,544,576 $ (18,459) $ 1,526,117
1,544,576 $ (18,459) $ 1,526,117
cs (18,459) $ (18,459)
(18,459) $ (18,459)
cs (18,459)  $ 18,459 $
(18,459)  $ 18,459 $
CS
2020 31
cs 205,613  $ 205,613
205,613 $ 205,613
cs 205,613 $ (205,613) $
205,613 $ (205,613) $
cs (984,862)  $ (984,862)
(984,862)  $ (984,862)
cs (984,862) $ 205,613 $  (779,249)
(984,862) $ 205,613 $  (779,249)
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2021 31

CS

2021 31
2020 31

©
2163 12

2020

5.3
IFRS 13
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2021 31
3
2021 31
2021 31
c $ $ 33,650,439  $ $ 33,650,439
1,544,576 1,544,576
$ $ 35,195,015  $ $ 35,195,015
$ $ (18,459) $ $ (18,459)
$ $ (18,459) $ $ (18,459)
2020 31
2020 31
c $ $ 34,146,003  $ $ 34,146,003
205,613 205,613
$ $ 34,351,706 $ $ 34,351,706
$ $ (984,862) $ $ (984,862)
$ $ (984,862) $ $ (984,862)
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
5.4
2021 31 2020 31 578,530,648
431,729,545 2021 31 507,764,397
453,974,841 123,578,883
(2.,020,798) (67,548,155) (165,074)
(55, 300) 2020 31 431,148,133
408,518,145
33,489,616
587,258 2,254,726 (12,495,008)
(1,187,522) (1,269) (17,813)
2021 31
2020 31
6.
100
1
100
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2021 31
2021 31 4.3
2021 10 cs TRY 268,902,261  USD (30,331,459) $ 1,484,158
2021 10 cs TRY 84,044  USD (9,548) 396
2021 10 cs TRY 154,934  USD (17,972) 360
2021 10 cs TRY 28,133,612  USD (3,270,375) 58,300
2021 10 cs TRY 967,630  USD (113,125) 1,362
2021 10 cs USD 22,768 TRY (201, 965) (1,128)
2021 10 cs USD 6,030  TRY (53,315) 278)
2021 10 cs USD 40,263 TRY (356,761) (1,948)
2021 10 cs USD 59,518  TRY (522,000) (2,244)
2021 10 cs USD 99,901  TRY (875,003) (3,626)
2021 10 cs USD 98,787  TRY (864,552) (3,504)
2021 10 cs USD 76,523  TRY (659,530) (1,510)
2021 10 cs USD 178,270  TRY (1,542,394) (4,221)
$ 1,526,117
cs
2020 31 @.3)
2020 cs TRY 245,795,107  USD (35,633,741)  $ (565,558)
2020 cs usD 35,273,796  TRY (245,795,107) 205,613
2020 10 cs TRY 241,472,316 USD (34,037,272) (419,304)
$ (779,249)
cs
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2021 31
7.
2021 31 2020 31
$ 498,564  $ 69,515
(2,720,189) (2,458,828)
$ (2,221,625)  $ (2,389,313)
$ (41,196) $ 617,385
2,305,366 (779,249)
$ 2,264,170 $ (161,864)
8.
8.1
»
0.06 10 0.05 10
0.04 3,750 2021 31
2020 31 2021 31 2020
31
®
0.025 2021 31 2020
31 2021 31 2020 31
©
2021 0.42
2021 30
0.60
2021 31
2020 31 2021 31 2020 31
()]
0.35
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
®
0.01 1 10
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
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2021 31
®
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
8.2
»
10,000 2021 31
2020 31 2021 31
2020 31
®
0.12
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
32
Actual/365
©
5,000
2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
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2021 31
(O]
0.01
2021 31 2020 31

2021 31 2020 31

®
2021 31 2020 31
2,720,255 2,457,984

2,305,366 ($779,249)

9.
10
2021 31 2020 31
10.
2021 BBH & Co. BBH State Street Corporation
BBH
2022 BBH
2021 11 30 2021
2021 11 30 3,913,155 3,227,315
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2021 31
584,700 66,521
0 0
6 1
675 77
0 0
2,492 284
0 0
501 57
0 0
TBA 0 0
12,305 1,400
1,190 135
0 0
601,869 68,475
0 0
0 0
129 15
2,737 311
5,046 574
5,200 592
TBA 0 0
0 0
7,743 881
0 0
1 0
123 14
0 0
0 0
28 3
132 15
0 0
100 11
21,239 2,416

580,630 66,058
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579,610 65,942

0 0

0 0

(151) aan

0 0

32,109 3,653
307
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2021 31

7,233 823
21 2
7,254 825
185 21
189 22
990 113
208 24
173 20
1,109 126
42 5

43 5
224 25
41 5
100 11
3,304 376
3,950 449
4,558 519
0 0
(1,279) (146)
(2,270) (258)
1,318 150
2,327 265
8,810 1,002
0 0
(208) (24)
(932) (106)
(45) ®)
7,625 867
9,952 1,132
13,902 1,582
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2021 31

3,950 449
2,327 265

7,625 867

13,902 1,582

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

* 136,529 15,533
150,431 17,115

430,199 48,944

580,630 66,058

12
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0.01

2021 31

101.67 11,567
(@) 1.56 177
1.47 167
3.03 345
104.70 11,912

() 2.98
32,109 3,653

0.03

0.02

1.50
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[T
(TN

AerCap lroland Capital DAC
S, o due 05/26,/2022 £

e due 12/716,202]

1. G25% due 07,/0)1/2022

AIA Group Led

0. 70T% due 09/20,/202]

Air Lease Corp.

2 To0% due 01/15/2023

Ally Financial, Ine.

4. 105% due 021372022
Aozora Bank Ltd.

. B10% dwe 08072021
Aviation Capital Growp LLC
0. 856% due 07/30/2021

Lo A% due 0601,/2021
2.875% due 01720052022
Avolon Holdings Funding Lid.
2 ETS% due 02/ 152025

oo % due 0171572023
Banco Santander Chile

Lo ddos doe 1172872021
Bapclars FLC

I 536% duo 0516/

LE3T% due 0615/
BOC Aviation Ltd
2.075% due 097152021
2. 700% due 09/ 18,2022
SO0 due 06,/23/2022
BOC Avintion USA Corp,

1. BZE% due 047292024

Alp

G 500 duw

CIT Group, Ine,
B OO0 due 08715/°2022
Citigroup, Inc,

D 06,701 /2024
s 051772024
1. TH2% due 10/27,/2023
Credit Agricele 5. A
1. 230% duee 0372272024 3
Credit Suisse Group AG

Lo A24% due 061272024

2. 103% dus 06,05, 2026

Danske Bank A5

L 171% dise D2/08/2023

Lo 244% due 09712/2023

S 001% dus 09202022

Deutschs Bank AG

0. BOSN due 05,/28,/2024 ()

First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC

I- LS dus O4S16,/2022

GA Global Funding Trust

1. B5% LG 2026
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc,
0. B01% duse 12/00/2026

Lo ATE% due O7/24/2003

L 4% e 10,729,/2027

ALD

fECH]

a1
alé
a1

1,700 1, T0G
500 Ei
TO0 718

o0

00
400
100 1,

o O
14
1=l

(E1H] 618
EoLH] o3l
HHY B
(ZLH] Bl1
1, 00 787
1, 700 1,703
200 =
RO EL}
(1] B
1, Dp 1,004

200

2, 300 2, 4148

100 30
2, 600 I, 540
2, 000 1, B85

1,400 1,417

1,500 g
1, D00 I,

2,500 2, B15
1, 500 1 214
1, 600 1, G611
B0 &0l
3, i & 018
100 105

G0
3
=11
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Hana Bank

0. 8% due 10/02,/2082 ]
HSBC Holdings FLC

Lo 1 duo 027162024 Al
Lo ADT% due 0351172025 3
15H Portfolicaanngemont Aock

0. 4800% due 1151972021

ING Groop KV

L et e OH1/0172027
International Lease Finance Corp.
B 625% due 01/15,/2032

JFlorgan Chaso & Ca,

1. 063% dwe 072372024

LensoFlnn Corp. NV

BTN due 10S2472024

Lloyds Banking Group FLC

L00T% due 11507,/2023

Mirao Assot Securities Co. Ltd
4 EE5% due 11007/2021

Mitsubishi HC Capital, Ine.
2.652% due (919,202

Mizuho Financial Growp, Inc.

0. 77T% due 05,25,/2024

1 034% dise 091372023

L 17T8% dise 0710072024

Nationwide Building Society

1 62E% due 04/36/2023

NatWest Group PLC

L T51% due 06,25,/ 2024

Nemura Boldings, Inc.

1. 551% due 0716,/ 2025

2645% due 01/16,/2025

MNardoa Bank Abp

L OTE% due 08,/30,/2053

ORIX Corp.

T 00 due 077182022

3. 200% due 01,19/2022

Pacific Life Global Funding IT

0. 030% dise 06/ 04,/2026

Park Aercspace Holdings Lid.

4. 500 due 03/ 15,2053

5. 250 due 08/15,/20:2

Piper Sandler Cos,

4. T40% dwe 10/ 15,2021

5. 20400% due 10/15,/2023

GNE Finamce Ltd.

1. 176% due 0502,/2022

I 230% die 02 122022

1. T92% dus 0270173023 Al
Santander Holdings USA, Inc.

1. 450% due 1200,/2021 5
Santander UK Group Holdings PLC

L 085 dise (031572025

3 3T3% duwe 01005,/2024

5L Green Operating Partnership LP
Lo L% due 08/ 16,/202]
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i (5 Lhg*

(ML) (Fft)
Standard Chartered PLC
1250% due 10/ 1472023 L] 3,500 H 3,5
3 TESE due 05212025 00 b 1]
Stato Bank of India
4. 000% due 01242022 400 108

86, 178

ppowm
T-Eleven, Inc.
0 625% duse 02 10/2023 B0 B01
O SO0 due 02,/10/2024 BHY 600
Arrow Electreaics, Inc.
3. 500% due 04S01/2022 600 612
Bayer U.5. Finamce I1 LLC
L. 1594% due 12/15,/2023 1, hom I, 116
Borry Global, Ime.
4. 575% due O07/15,/2028 1,400 1, 481
Boeing Co.
L. 167% due 02/04,/2083 1,500 1, 507
1. A35% due 02042024 2,100 2, 107
I 875% due 06152023 700 716
4. 60 due 0501/2023 1, GOD 1, 710
Central Nippen Exprossway Co. Ltd
0 G16% dise 02015,/2022 7 000 7, 018
0. 00 due 03,/03,/2022 00 301
ES6TH die 11/02/2021 1. (00 1, Gy
CE Hutchison Intorpaticoal 16 Ltd
1. B75% due 30052021 550 B52
Dolta Air Lines, Inc.
3. 625% due 0G/15,/2022 EO0 BL3
Emorgy Transfer LP
5000t duwe 10,701 ,/2022 o0 KR
Fard Moter Credit Co. LLC
L DG due 10/12,/20:2] 1, D00 1, 198
3o 219% due 01/00,/2022 700 708
3 0% due 01072022 400 1
3 B1T% due 1071272021 B0 B06
b. 596% due 01/07/2022 400 410
BoBTEN% due (8,/02/2021 3, 100 5110
GATX Carp.
0. 896% dise 11,/05,/2021 1, 000 1, o0z
Gonaral Mills, Inc.
B A0S due 10015,/ 2022 400 31
General Motors Co.
1083% dise 05110072021 400 401
General Motors Financisl Co., Ine.
L. 275% due 11/06,/2021 2, W00 2,811
L T36% dise 01/ 14/2022 154 135
Heathrow Funding Ltd.
4. 875% due 07/15,/2021 500 02
Hewlatt Packard Enterprise Co.
0. 0% due 10/705,/2021 GO0 B0
Hyundai Capital America
Lo 13 due O7,/08,2021 LA72 1,173
L1500 duse 1110/2022 1, To0 1,711
L3T5% due 027002023 00 s
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Hyundai Capital Services, Inc.

3006 due 02731202 3

Imporial Brands Finance PLC
3. 125% due 07/26/2024

47500 due 07/2)/2022

Eraft Heinz Foods Co.

O 9E2% due 081072022

Lonnar Corp.

1. 125% due 01152022

A 7500 due 1171572022

BTSN due 10/0] /2032
Marriott International, Imc.
& F25% doe 10/15,/202]

MGM Resorts Imternational

7. 7B due 00 16,/2032
Microchip Tochnelogy, Inc.
0 R duse 0,01 /2024

Kissan Motor Acceptance Corp.
O B39 due 07,/13/2020

0, SE3% due 09)/28/2022

1. 078% dus 01/13,/2022

2. G0 due 097280

R BY

G BTN duwe 09D]1/2022

Sabine Pass Liguefsction LLC
G 250 due 0G/15/2002

SMBC Aviation Capital Finance DAC
3. 000% due 07/15/2022

3. 600k due 04152024

1. 125% duee O07/16/2023

Sutter Health

Lo 321% due 0571572025

EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000o0000000000dn(ELs389)

Bl
e i

(ZU]

1, 300
1, 100

1,538

2,500
2,000
1. 200

1. 000

1,450
ELH

OooOooooOoooooooooboood

B
(T Hfir)

617

1, 350
1, 538

1, 615
318

1,782

2,504
2,09
1, 203

ElY

a2
1, os0
Gl
1343

425

101
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ATAT, Ine.

1 279% due 09/19/2023 ALD
CanterPoint Energy Rescurces Corp.

0 63% due 03/02/2023 i

Charter Commmications Operating LLC
L B26% dise G2,01/2024
Dissandback Energy, Inc.
0. 000% due 032472023
Israel Electric Corp. Ltd
BoATS% dise 06212023
Oecidental Petroless Corp.
1. 605% due 08,/15,/2022

0GE Energy Corp.

0. T0E% due 06,/26,2023
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.
1. 670% dise 06,/ 16,/2022

L. 7500 due 06,16,/2022
30500 due 061572023
JoA00% due 0815,2024
37500 due 02715/2024
JoH50% due 11/15,/202)

4. 2500% due 08,01,/2023
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5 1 LT ]

(TN ) [kl
Relinoce Industries Ltd
B 400% due 027142022 H B0 1 19
Saudi Arabisn 01 Co.
L. 500 due 11242023 20 2
5K Telocom Co. Ltd
ETE0N due B4 16,/2023 1, 00 1. 038
Southern California Edison Co.
0L B0% due 04/01/2024 1, 0 1. 005
Sprint Commanications, Ime.
B 0O0% due 11015/ 2022 40 125
Sprint Corp.
T 1255 doe 061572024 100 I15
7. 150% due 091572021 7 712
¥alors Energy Corp.
I 334% doe 097152023 1. 40D 1,403
Yerizon Communications, Inc.
0. 500% due 03202006 1, 4040 LA27
L. 3500 due 02/ 172023 AUD 1. 800 1. 401

26, 47T

Hhiwart 169, 553
(Gl 3167, 901)
Dwuphin, Pennsylvania, Pennsylvenin Higher Education Assistance Agency Revenus Bonds, Series 2008
0. 3068 due 10/25,/2006 i 249 247
Sacrasesto, Californis, Gemoral Obligation Bonds, Series 2017
0. BRTR due 301247 200 200
Salt Lake, Utah, Utah State Board of Regents Revenue Bonds, Saries 2007
08425 due 01/25/2067 144 137
bl gty 584
(GBI 5584)
oo
Freddie Msc
E 0008 due 09/25/2045 525 a3l
(eSS 3535)
Fannie Wae
0L B7S% due E2018/2006 4, 500 4. 473
0. 892% due 03/25,/2028 10 106

328 due 04/25/2023 1 1
Fodoral Home Loan Bank

0. T50% due 02024/ 2026 4. 304 1, 281
. 5305 due 02/10/2027 5, 500 5, 437
0. B50% due 02/17,/2027 4. B0 1. 515
0. 500% due 02,/06,/2027 6, 30 . M1
0. G20% due 02,/ 26/2027 4. 500 4462
[, 9600 due 00,06,2026 5, 000 5, 0]
L. 000% due 03/23,/2026 1400 1,401
V. 0208 due D22/ 202T T, 000 G, w7
L 0T due 05,/28,/2006 1, 0k 1, 0]
L 115% due 02726/2027 5, 600 b, Bl
Freddie Mac

0. 465% due 03/15/2007 7 754
0. 465% due 10/35/2037 1. 058 1, 062
. A65% due D8/15/242 525 533
0. 5ISN due 001520400 467 193
0. B00% due 10/I7,/2026 1, 5O 1. 483
5000 due 10/25/2048 255 266
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50 B

(T M)
Ginnio Mas
0. 5608 due 03/20,/2061 1 Bl 3 Bl
0L BIO% due 08/20,2066 "“ o
0. B0 due 05/20,/2066 138 141
0. 9605 due 07/ 20,2066 7l Te
0o doe 11/20,/2066 153 156
1. 080% due 117202067 s g5
* 5000 due OS50 2040 104 110
2 S00% due 1D/20,/2049 129 135
A [RET 56, 018

L5 Treasury Notes

0. E25% due 04,730,/2023 o, 000 o, wal
0, THON due 017312028 2, 800 LT
RERBE TERR A 12, 617
(FhIRE $12, 648)

B i st 5 EER 16 5%

ACE Securities Corporation Home Equity Loan Trust

DURTIN due B4/I5/2034 309 04
ACRES Commercial Realty Corp.

LB01% due 04717/2007 1. 025 1, 027
AREIT Trust

L LI8% due 097 1472006 50 |
27218 due BLS15/2037 837 .2 )
Atrium Fetel Portfolio Trust

L. 051% duc D6/15,/2035 T Tl
Avon Fimance Mo, 2 FLC

O s dune 0890 00,°2048 = 1. BE1 2 676
BAMLL Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust

L. 1518 due 04/15/2036 i §0e) e
1. 3018 due 03/15,/2034 404 401
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage Trust

L IB1% due 09)15,/2036 458 457
Bear Stearns Adjustable Bate Mortgage Trust

2L B00% due 0425,/2003 5§ i
E RN due 08/25/2053 = 3
Bear Stearns Asset-Backed Securities I Trust

0 5008 due 06/25,/2034 1oz 47a
Bear Stearns Second Lien Trust

LA42% due 01/25,/2036 55 =
Beast Mortgege Trust

L. 300% due 03/15/2036 2000 2, D06
Erass Mo, 8 FLC

0. B56% due 111672066 176 177
BX Trust

(. B01% due 0071572004 &, A el 1l |
Canterbury Finance Ko, 1 PLC

L. 3o due 05, 16/2056 B 1. 000 L 432
Citigroup Mortgage Loam Trust

3 228N dup 09725/ 2050 $ 165 156
Citigroup Mortgage Loam Trust, Inc.

0oBI2E due 11/25/2036 208 .
COLT Mortgage Loan Trust

1. 255% due 09/35,/2060 610 613
Comercial Mortgage Trust

0. 728% due 03/10/2046 o 32
Comtrywide Asset-Backed Cortificates

0L BTH due 08/35/2036 144 148
Crodit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust

0. B51% due OT/15/2032 304 2ot
1. To6% due 1202772060 1. 10 1. 102
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TR S Lhg*

(ML) (Fuift)
2 086% due 10/27/2059 3 G40 5 BA46
3 322% due 10/25/2058 168 170
(5 First Boston Mortgage-Backed Trust
O B32% due 10,/25,/2034 Z 2
Dilosk FMBS No. 4 DAC
O 10N e 02 20,2060 ELE 2, i 3, 633
Earopean Loan Conduit No. 36 DAC
1 000 due (201772030 Gty 1,222
Finance America Mortgage Loan Trust
0. 01T% due 08°25,/2034 H 154 153
Finsbury Square PLC
O B9 due 06162070 OB 2,728 3, 875
1 ME% due 06/ 16,/2069 1. §28 1, 604
1. 05% due 12/16,/2068 1,385 1, 580
Firstmac Mortgage Funding Trust No.d
0. B9G% due 03082049 3 =20 25
Fromont Homo Loan Trust
O 274 dse 01/25,/2035 3oz 300
GCT Commarcinl Mortgege Trust
0. 01% dse 02015/2038 500 BO1
Geagartoe PLC
0. 000% due 12162067 GEF' 1, 00 1, 425
5 MortgageBsched Securities Corp. Trust
L. T50% dise §2/25/2060 i 2,820 2, BI5
Bawksacor Mortgege Funding PLC
1. 10K dse 05725,2053 GEF G2 05
Hawksmoor Martgages
1. e 05,"25,2063 1,082 1, 455
Hemeward Opportunities Fund 1 Trust
1. 657% dise 06,/25,/2065 § 350 353
LY Trust
Lo 101% due 11515/20346 25 326
Impac QB Trust
0. 342% due 05,25,/2035 1,181 1, 138
0. T32% due 09/25,/2035 142 145
JPlcrgan Chase Cossorcisl Mortgage Securities Corp,
4 12N duee OT05,/2031 1., Oy 1, 64
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
1. 100% dwe 06715,2032 24 25
1. 551% due 12/15/2031 et b
A1 due 06/715,2035 185 |86
Lanark Master Issuer PLC
0020 dise 12227204 400 101
Legacy Mortgage Assot Trust
FoAE% due 05 25,2059 G836 GE
3TB0% due O425,/2050 HETES i)
London Wall Mortgage Capital PLC
0, 9E% dus 117152049 GEP 108 15
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust
1. 06T% due O4/25,/2085 3 ETD T
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
b TOE% due 09252004 144 14l
WFL Ltd,
L.222% dise 12°25/2034 50 260
E151% dise 07/ 15,2035 L] B10
WF1 Multifamily Housing Mortgage Loan Trust
0. 951% dise 07/ 15,2036 2,500 2, 504
WFA Trust
1. 381% due 04/Z5,/2065 950 il
L AT die 05252065 (=5 Bib
Mill City Mortgage Loan Trust
L. 125% due 115252060 1,34 1, 353
TR0 dwe 0825520540 S 26
Morgan Stanley Assot-Backed Securities Capital I, Inc. Trust
0. 2% duse 05,25,/ 2024 i 51
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T a5

(TN (Fft)
Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust
L L0% due 05/ 15,/2036 5 T i BT
How Residentisl Mortgnge Loan Trust
D.1% due 09/°75/2058 1, 0 1, 0o
LTBON due 07/25/208% 2,47 2, 460
L7500 dwe 11/35/2059 2,018 2, a0
oo dwe 12252057 1y 113
A 500 due 06,/25,/2058 176 L1
Nemurn Resecuritization Trust
2. 005% due 10/ 20/2026 B3z G35
HovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust
0. T52% due 01725/20346 Fa ] n
Permanent Master lssuer PLC
0. T doo 071572058 00 oLl
FFP Ltd.
LGS due 0471472036 710 710
L TA8% due 04/ 1472037 1, 00 1, 33
Polaris FLC
L 20 due 052772057 GHE 1, 052 I, 453
Frecise Mortgage Funding FLC
O 079% due 10162056 alG 1, 306
Pretium Mortgage Credit Partoers I LLC
208 due 0972772060 i el 1t
Regidential Mortgage Accoptance Corporatiem FLC
0. TR due 06/ 12/2046 GEF 351 R
Rosidential Mortgage Securities 31 PLC
1. 284% due 092072065 144 205
Rosidentinl Mortgage Securities X2 PLC
L 20 due 06 20,°2070 458 BAT
RESIMAC Premier
0. PO5% due O7,/10,/2052 5 6,517 6, 516
Ripon Mortgages PLC
O EE]S due 087202006 G 1, 586 2.2
Silverstone Mastor Isswer FLC
0. THER due 012172070 3 127 127
0. 7% dwe 01/21/2070 GEP =] 172
Stapwich Mortgage Loan Co. LLC
33T5% due 081552024 3 193 195
Stratton Mortgage Funding
0. la% due O7,/30,2080 GEF 436 (2344
Stratton Mortgage Funding PLC
0% due 00 12/2062 168 213
L. 2450% due 05/25,/2051 107 B8l
Structured Asset Investment Loan Trust
B BAZ% due 09252004 £ 1,524 1,785
Teurus (K DAC
0. D00 due 06,717/2031 GEP 1. 700 2,418
Tharaldsen Hotel Partfolio Trust
L 00 duse §1/°11/2034 3 E10 BOG
Towd Foint Mortgage Funding
O BS% due 07,720,/2045 GER 1, 208 1,717
Lo 249% due 022072054 497 710
Towd Foint Mortgage Funding Auburn 14 FLC
0. 4% dise 05,/20,/2045 ] 1,524

Tewd Polmt Mertgage Funding Granited FLC

I 111% die 10,/20/2051 194 7
Towd Point Mortgage Trust

boSh due 05, 25,2058 3 419 23
Lo092% dwe §0/25/2059 4322 428
LG duse 04025,/ 2060 3, s 3,04
LTI due D1/25,/2060 L1 1, 215
3. 7500 due 057252054 [ 720
UBS-Barclays Cossercial Mortgage Trust

0. 555% duwe 04,/10,/2046 1 200
Y Fionoce LLC

L 201% due 09 15/20036 88 58
Lo 210% dise D6/ 16,/2036 2,000 2, 00
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SR S B

L ot 1] { T
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust
0 9% dus 12/13./2031 -] 20 H 443
1 151% due O7/15/2046 =5 205
4. 218% due 07/15,/2046 LU L v
WFRES Cosmercial Mortgnge Trost
0. B91% dise 1271572045 (e Gk
V-V Ay P ESSH 97, 458
(R PRI 594, 225)

e e oo o JEMR 13 6%
A0 Bridge Asset Financing LLC

2021% due 08152040 1468 1, 475
AMMC CLD 16 Ltd

L 166% due 0471472029 B0 02
Anchorage Capital CLO 6 Led.

1. 5% due OF/15,2030 2, 2, Gy
Arber Realty Cossercial Real Estate Motes Lid

1 251% doe 05/15/2037 F00 00
Atrium XII

LIRS due 0472252027 ] S
Black Dismond CLO Designated Activity Co.

- dus 10/03,2029 BET 58T
Bampor UK Finance FLC

0. 549 duse 12,720,°2030 GE 1, D 1, 420
Cairn CLO IV BV

o GOO duse 047302031 EUR 2, 2,482
Carlyle Global Market Strategies Huro CLO DAC

0. TR due 09/21/2029 patig 362
Catamaranm CLO Lid.

1. 280% due 01/18,/2029 i 2.282 2,255
Cathedral Lake CLO Lid.

L3S due 00/716,/2020 U] GO0
Chesapoake Funding 11 LLC

3200 due 08/15,2030 | 2
Commercial Industrial Finance Corporation Punding Ltd

O, 000% due 10,724,200 2 500 2, 500
1 006% due 10/25,/2027 T &37
Contego CLO IT BY

0. 365% due 11/15,/2026 ELR B14 748
Cantego CLO IV DAC

0. G40 dise D1/ 23/2030 4000 157
Dall Equipment Finance Trust

D60 due O622/2032 i BIT v
Darchester Park CLO DAC

L08R due 04202028 12 presd
ECMC Group Student Lean Trust

O B42% due 027272068 BOIE 511
L. 14Z% due 06/25,/20867 q10 Sl
EFS Yolumteer LLC

LO26% due 10/25,/2005 100 100
Fair Oaks Loam Funding IT DAC

L 00 e OF715/20:3] EUE 1,800 2, 193
FirstKoy Homes Trust

L 266% due 1071972037 5 1, it 1, &7
Flagship Credit Auto Trost

2,800 due 10162023 ai ai
PFard Credit Floorplan Master Owner Trast A

B T01% due 09)15,/2024 (0] B
Gallatin CLO 1X Ltd.

1. 236% due 01/21,/2028 W17 17
GLS Auto Recedvables Isswer Trust

0. 6590 due 10/18,/2023 i 8]
Haleyon Loan Adviscrs Punding Ltd

1. 108% due 042002027 137 B
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HERA Commercisl Mortgage Ltd
1. LA5% dus 021572038 3
Invesco Euro CLO 1 DAC
0. G50% due 07/15/2031 ELR
Jubdlen CLO EV

0o GI0% dise 041572030

0. G5O dise O/ 15,205)

LonnCore Issuer Ltd.

1. 231% due 05, 15,20046 H
LF Credit Card Asset-Backed Securities Master Trust

b GG1% due (8,°20,/2024

Man GLG Eure CLO ITT DAC

0. 680 due 1015,/2030 ELR
Marathon CLO ¥ Ltd
1. 00E% due 11/21/2027 H

Marble Point CLO X Ltd.

L 224% due 1015,/2030

Marlotte Funding Trust

& 130% due 07/ 16,2029

Master Credit Card Trust 1I

0. 5878 due O7,/21/2024

MidOcean Credit CLO II

O, 000 due 01,529,203

Midocean Credit CLO ¥III

L 206% due 02/20,203]

Mountain Yiew CLO LLC

L 274 due 10/16,/2029

Mountain Yiew CLO X Ltd

L 00E% dwe 101352027

Havient Private Education Loan Trust
1 101% due D4/ 15,2064

2 6500 due 12715/2028

Havient Private Edocation Refi Loan Trust
L1T0% due 09,716,°2068

L3 due 011552068

LG50 due 05,15,°2008

Melmet Student Loan Trust

0. TU2% due 09027 /2008

O B09% due 09,725,/ 2065

0. B92% due 08,25,/ 2067

O 2% due 02252066

0. 992% due D6/I7/2067

04K Hill Burepean Credit Fartmers YII DAC

O, TA0% due 10,720,201 ELR
OCP CLD Ltd
O BN due O00/15,2027 5

Onolain Financial Issuance Trust
2070 due 097142002

Palmer Square CLO Lid

1. O06% due 08/ 15,/2026

Penarth Master Issuer FLC

0. 635% due 0771872023

O, B35 due 07182023

Pepper SPARET Trust Mo. 3

1. 055% dise 088,17 ,/2028 AR
PFS Finnncing Corp.
0. 651% due BL/15/2024 5

O B3 due 08152024
SLC Student Loam Trust
O 216% due 05/15,/2020
0. 204% due 03,/15/2027
SLM Student Loam Trust
0 286% dwe 01,726/2006
b 6o6% due 127152027
1 GT6% duse O4725/ 2053
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2021 31
Tl W
{FNLf) (TFift)

SME Private Education Loan Trust
0. 352% due 09/15,°2054 H 64 H 264
L215% dwe O7./15/2053 1,042 1, DG6
1. 60 due 09,715,2054 BO0 04
SoFi Consusor Loan Prograa Trust

2 000% doe 0525,/202% 133 134
J000 dise 04252028 M 33
3. 2400 due 02/25,/2023 B B
SaFi Professional Loan Program LLGC

2% due D1°25,/2039 19 19
2. TN due 1052772036 L] 67
Sound Podnt CLO XIV Led

1. 163% dus 01/23,/3029 1,477 1,435
Sourd Point CLO X¥ Ltd.

0. D00 due 01,/23,2020 2, W0 3. BuZ
Sourd Point CLO X¥I Ltd

1. 156% due O7./25,/2030 2,400 2, Wl
Tikehaa CLO BY

0. G00% due 08042028 EUR 720 BT
TRTX Issuer Ltd.

1. 251% die 10152034 i 1, 0 1, GO0
Upstart Securitization Trust

2G5S due 01212030 i b
EBOTH due 09)20,/20: 4 A4
Yenture 36 CLO Ltd
0. 0000% dise 04202032 () 2,700 2,700
Venture XVII CLO Ltd

L 0G4% due 04015,/ 2027 Lot} B
Yenturs XEVI CLO Lid

L. 288% due 012072029 T T
T b oot ERSH T8, 358
(FEE 577, T53)

Expori-laport Bank of India

1. 195% due 0821/2022

International Bank for Recomstruction & Dovelopmont
0650 dise 02 10//2026

0. B50% due 02102027

Israal Governmenmt Bood

g
g

8%

0. 050 dise 11/30,/2021 15 4, W0 1, 508
b BMr% due 01/31,/2022 14, 200 |, BOG
Qatar Goverrment International Bond

LATSN duse DET2/202) 5 1, D00 1,001
Saudi Government International Bond

L 3TE% due 10/26/2021 1, 000 1, C0f
FF U AN 15, 128

(R METE 515, 028)
Sv—an e R

r— S fie s i ri— 3%

Conagra Brands, Inc.
O D0 due D01/2021 {c) 1, on 1,

g

|

Pacific Caz & Eleetric Co.
1. 565% due 11/15/2021 1. 00 1. 0

L
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T HiYY) (g

i b i R o e et -
CIMIC Growp Ltd. () (e}

0. D00% due 061172021 5 2,345 3 il

0. 000% - duoe OF.709,/2021 1.073 1, 064
5,410

Australia and New Zoalsnd Banking Group Ltd.

(0, 2000) doe 06,01, 2021 ALD oE 7

0. 005% due 06,/01/2021 3 248 246

Bank of MNova Scotia

0. 005% due 06/0072021 a8 48

0. 0I0% due 06/01/2021 CAD =7 e

BN Paribas Bank

(0. 5508} due 06,01./2021 K 2 0

0, BOB% due 06/01/2021 D T b

00, DO5% due 067012021 3 2m =0

0L 010% doe 0600152021 CAD 30 25

Citibank N. A

0. DO5% due 06,01 2021 4 13 134

DBS Bank Litd,

(0. DOBS due 06,/01,/2021 i3 13

Daf Bank ASA

(0, TR} due 06,/01°2021 EUR 2 3

0. 005% due 06/01/2021 § £l 9

HSBC Bank PLC

(0, TR0} due 06,01,2021 ELR 16 19

0. GO5% due 06,/01/2021 GEF 0 1

JPMorgnn Chase Bank N, A,

0 O05% due 06/01/2021 5 268 i

Royal Bank of Canada

0, 000% due 06,/01/2021 CAD 230 191

Sumitoms Mitsul Banking Corp.

(0, TEO%) due 06012021 EUR 1% 2

0. 005% due 06/01/2021 H 105 108

0. DO5% due 060172021 GEF HL 55

Sumitomo Mitsuyi Trust Bamk Ltd

0, 005% due 06/01/2021 3 126 126

. OG5S due 06,/01/2021 G 226 320
1, 919

0 101% due 08/05/2021 (c) CAD 11, 000 . 104
(0, 02es) due 02/02/2022 {d) ILS 10,600 3. a2
(0, 022%) doe 11230/ 2021 {d) 7. 900 2431
0011 due OM/06/2022 {c} 1.200 I

6,062

AR MR 3. o8
(0 1% doe 08,10/ 2021 de} ¥ I, 511, 000 22,837

132/235



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000o0000000000dn(ELs389)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

2021 31
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(-l {Tupigay

0% due D6/01/2021 () -1 2, 000 E 2,000
00008 due 07/08/2021 {c) £ 50 it
0.031% due 1050452021 {e) () 2,30 2,200
0 033% due 10/707,/2021 {c} 3,900 3,900
O 04F% dibe 0B726,/2021 de) () 3,000 3. 000
O 5% dipe 06,/29,2021 (d) 70, 100 70, 1060
&7, 500

=T E AR A (o)A T

Oo020% dise 0571472021 5, 100 5, 100

0, 020% due 09/28/2021 (b 2, 300 3300
0. 025% due 09/07/2021 12, 600 2, 600
21,000
SR 154, 435
(AR 5154, 531)
SRAEESEH () 100.7% ) 584, 700
CHuWEE 5579, 5100
BT U 45
() (g} (0.4%) (2, 185)

(SRR AR I 70, M $(161))

FOROREES LR, S 0. 0% (1, B85

SR 100, 0% ] B0, 630
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Statement of Financial Position

July 31, 2021
(Expressed in U5, Dollars)
Assets July 31, 2021 July 31, 2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5, 6) F 35195015 $ 34351, 706
Cash and cash egquivalents (Note 2.1) 164 530 189423
Prapaid fees 67,391 104 059
Recaivables for
Units issued (Mote 210, 3) 3,480 968 107024
Sale of Investimeant in the Salected Fund (Mate 2.4} 151,000 440180
Total agcels 38 087 905 35,192 392
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5, 6) 18,458 a54 862
Payables for
Purchase of investment in the Selected Fund (Mote 2.4) 3476 527 44
Professional fees (Mote 8.1F) 20,188 19,250
Castibution fees (Note 8 1C) 17,177 4.7
Fee agent fees (Mole 8.28) 14 622 3190
Units repurchased (Note 2,10, 3) 13 469 166376
Investment management fees (Mote 5.10) 5446 38,709
Admirestrator fees (Mote 8.1A) 71572 -
Custody fees (Mote 8 18]} 6,192 7,041
Transfer agent feas (Mole 8.1E) 2365 2,750
Agent member company feas (Nate & 2D) 270 O
Lishilitias (xcluding aquity) 3,536 287 1,278,109
Enuity (being net assets attributable to the holders of units ) $ 354318618 £ 331014783

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statements

1
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Income July 31, 2021 Juby 31, 2020
Mat incomadloss) from financial instrumaents at FYTRLY

Met realzed loss on Anancial assets and habiibes ab far valus Bhrough

profit ar kass (Mate 2,11, 7) 3 {2.221625) $ (2,389,313}
Net change in unrealized appreciation|deprecabon) on financal
assels and liabiliies 2t fair value through profit erloss (2.2, 2.11, T} 2,264,170 [161,864)
Interest income (Mote 2.11) 22 154
Met realized loss on foreign cumency transactions (Mote 2 B) (17.66%) [116,465)
Met change inunrealzed depreciation on forsign cuerency translations
{Mote 2.6) 15,834) (G20])
Total incomedloss ) 18954 {2668 108]
Expenses
Distribution fees (Mote 8.1C) 180,056 115,003
inv estment management fees (Mote 2.1D) 113,34 67,085
Frofessional feas (Mate 8.1F) 59,788 19,250
Admenisirator fees (Mote & 14) 50,587 & 3a2
Fes Agent fees (Mote 8.2B) 41,226 25,205
Custody feas (Note & 1B) 38,865 34,728
Organizabon expenses 31430 26817
Prirdirg feas 23,460 -
Transfer agent feas (MNote 2.1E) 15,610 13,888
Agent mamber company fees (Mate 3 20D) 3,240 1,917
Tolal expenses 557,186 312275
Operating loss before finance costs (538 227) {2980,383)

Total comprehensive loss (being decréase in net assets attributable to
the holders of units from operations) 3 (535 227) § {2980 353

M This malates (o net wncome from financial instruments measuned at far valoe through profit or loss (CFWTPLT)
including realized and unréalized gainsilosses)on Enancal assets and habiities at fair value through profit or loss

The accompanying nofes are an inbagral part of these financial statements
2
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

At July 29, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) 3 =
Issue of wnits (Mote 3) 41,654 189
Repurchases of units (Mote 2.8, 3) 4.759.523)
Teotal comprehansive loss (being decrease innet assals

attributable to the holders of units from operabions) (2,980 383)
At July 31, 2020 § 33914 J83
Issie of wits (Note 3) 14,270,837
Reapurchases of units (Mote 2.8, 3) {12.165.275)
Total comprehensive loss {being decrease in net assets

allributable to the holders of units from aperabons) {538 2271
At July 31, 2021 § 35481618

The accompanying nofes are an intagral pard of these financial statements
3
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(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Tatal compranansive 058 [Deing decreasa in nelt assels albnbutable to
the halders of urits from operabions)

Adjustments to reconcik total comprehansive income (Baing Ncreasa in
nat assels altibutable to the holders of units fom operations ) i cash
provided by operating activiies:

Purchases of Investmeant in the Selected Fund
Proceeds from disposition of Investment inthe Selected Fund
MNet {payments) from setflemnent of forward confracts

Met realized loss on fnancial assets and liabilities at fair vahue
through profg or loss

Mt change & unreakzed (apprecation)'depreciation on financial
assels and liabibties at faer value through profit or loss

Decreasefincrease] in receivables for sale of Investmeant in the
Selected Fund

Decreasefiincrease) in prepaid fees
Increase in payables for purchase of Investmeant in the Selected Fund
[Decréase ¥increasa in othar payablest™

Met cash (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from unitsissued, net of change in recedvables for units
155ued

Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units
repurchased

Met cash provided by financing activities
Mat [dacreass Vincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents & beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Mote 2.1)

Supplemeantary information on cash fiows fFom operating activities
Interest recened

Juby 31, 2021 July 31, 2020

{538.227) % (2,980 383)
(17679 965) (40,794 463)
18632987 7,335 270
(2. 720,189) {2458 828)
22625 2.389.313
(2264 170) 161,864

289,180 (440, 180}

15 868 (104,059)
3475683 B4
[28.195) 106,027

1425397 {35784 535)
10,887 502 41,547 185

(12 338,182) {4.573.147)
{1.450.200) 26,0974 018
(24 893) 180423
189423 -
154 530 $ 162423
22 ] 154

M ther payables comprise of professional fees, distibution fess, fee agent fees, ivestment management fees, adminisirator feas,
custody fees, transfer agent fees and agent member company fees, as dsdosed inthe Statement of Financial Position

The accompanying notes ana an inkegral part of these financial statements

4

137/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO Short Term Strategy

MNotes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Exprassed in U.S. Doflars)

1. ORGANIZATION

PIMCO Short Term Strategy (the “Series Trust’) is a Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il {the
“Trust"), an open-ended urmbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman
|slands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant toa Supplemental Trust Deed dated July 5, 2013 and executed
by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee’}, a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
The Series Trust commenced operations on July 28, 2019

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registered under
the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-8005, Cayman Islands (formedy 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands).

The manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Manager™).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hariman & Co. (the
“Administrator”, “Custodian” and “Transfer Agent”).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent”) and Currency Administrator (the *Currency
Administrator”).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member Company”}.
The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is PIMCO Japan Ltd {the “Investment Manager").
The Manager has authorized SMBC MNikko Securities Inc. to act as the Distributor (the “Distributor”) ofthe units in Japan.

The Series Trust is denominated in U, 3. Dollars ("USD" or “37). One class of units in the Seres Trust is currently
available for issue: TRY Class Units, The TRY Class Units are denominated in Turkish Lira (“TRY").

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek maximum current income, consistent with preservation of capital
and daily liquidity, by investing indirectly in a diversified portfolio of mainky investment grade debt securities
denominated in U.5S. Dellars. The Series Trust seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing substantially all
of the assets of the Series Trust into the Class C (USD) Class Units of PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (the "Selected
Fund™).

The Selected Fund is a series trust of FIMCO Bermuda Trust, an umbrella unit trust established under the laws of
Bermuda as a mult-series trust (the "Umbrella Trust®).

The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek maximum current income, consistent with preservation of
capital and daily liquidity. Facific Investment Management Company LLC, which has expertise in managing fed
income instruments, is acting as both manager of the Selected Fund (the "SF Manager”) and investment adviser of the
Selected Fund (the "SF Investment Advizer”). The base currency of the Class C (USD) Clazs Units is USD. In
constructing the portfolio ofthe Selected Fund, the SF Manager and SF Investment Adviser seek to ensure high liquidity
and stability by controlling interest rate and credit risks.

The Investment Manager ofthe Series Trust shall have day-to-day investment decision-making and ongaing monitaring
responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust's portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money
market securities (the "Subadvised Portfolio™.

At July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 the Series Trust held 5.8% and 7.9%, respectively, of the Selected Fund's net
assels.

Currently the Selected Fund has six Classes of units - Class AUD, Class C (USD), Class J (JPY), Class J (USD), Class
JPY and Class USD. The Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by purchasing the Selected Fund's participating
shares in the Class C (USD). The Selected Fund allows repurchases of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund's portfolio and comesponding movements in the fair value of the
Selected Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss,

h
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy
Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021

(Exprassed in U.S. Doflars)

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable repurchase day following
the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day”), unless terminated earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

If the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units are compulsorily repurchased (such event, a "Compulsory
Repurchase Event®),

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day at
the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit of a class of units is calculated by the
Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 32 as the net asset
value ("Met Asset Value" being the value of ts total assets minus its liabilities including accrued fees and expenses)
per unit of such class of units on the Final Repurchase Day {or if such day is not also a valuation day the immediately
preceding valuation day). Repurchasa Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no Series Trust disruption
event occurs andior such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series
Trust, Unitholder is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit of a class of units repurchased on any Repurchase
Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset \alue per unit of such class of units as at the relevant
Repurchase Day (or ifthat Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the mmediately preceding valuation day) {the
“Repurchase Price”). There is no repurchase fee applied to the Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being
repurchased.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on Movember 30, 2021.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below, These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial
staternents in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical aceounting estimates and requires the Trustee

and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies, Areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Mote 4. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27) (2012) (the
Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FWTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOC!. The classification of
financial assets under IFRS 9is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

Cn initial recognition, the Seres Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FVWTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following condiions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:
i} ltis held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and,

i} Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of
principal and interast (SPPI).

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i} Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

iy [Itisnot held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to
bath collect contractual cash flows and sell;

O
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Exprassed in U.S. Doflars)

iy At initial recognition, it is imrevocably designated as measured at FWTPL when doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilties or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument, This includes assessingwhether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing
or amount of contractual cash fows such that it would not meaet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series
Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
« leverage features;
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- featuras that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Heldto-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees and receivables
for units issued and sale of investment in the Selected Fund. These financial assets are held to collect
contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(Investment in the
Selected Fund and derivative financial instruments). These financial assets are managed and their

performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including;

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether
the investment strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

= how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed,

= how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value ofthe
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets tothird parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
for this purpose, consistent with the Senes Trust's continuing recognition of the assets.
Impairment of financial assets

The ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investments at
FWOCI, but not to imvestments in equity instruments,

Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the Series Trust's financial
assels because:
- The majonty of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply
to such instruments.

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term {i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality
andf/or highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small.
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Exprassed in U.S. Doflars)

MNew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended July 31, 2021:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after August 1,
2020 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied thesa new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial
staternents.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all eash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or less
to be cash and cash equivalents.

At Juby 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalents:

2021 2020

Cash 3 1 [ =
Time deposit 164 529 159423
Cazh and cash eguivalents in the Statement of Financial Position 5 164,530 5 189 423

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

{A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
= Mandatorily at FWTPL: Imvestment in the Selected Fund and derivative financial instruments,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss conszist of the following:

July 31, 2021 July 31, 2021
- Fair Walue - Cost
Imvestment in the Selected Fund k3 33650439 k3 33074250
Irestment in forwand contracts 1544 576 —
Tatal financial assets &t fair valus through proft or loss 3 35195 015 3 32,074, 250
July 31, 2020 Juby 31, 2020
- Fair Walue - Cost
Irvestment in the Sefactad Fund 5 34 146 043 5 33578708
Irvestment in forward confracks 205613 -
Total financial assets at fairvalue throwgh profit orloss 3 4 351 706 3 33 526,708

Financial assets at amortized cost:
»« Cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees and recevables for units issued and investment sold in the Selected
Fund.

Financial iabilties at fair value through profit or loss:
s Mandatorily at FWTPL: derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilties at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

July 31, 2021
- Fair Walus
Irvestment in forward confracks [ 18450

SJuly 31, 2020
- Fair Value
Irvastment in frward contracks F SB4 562

Financial iabilties at amortized cost;

=1}
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Exprassed in U.S. Doflars)

= Other liabilities: payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund, professional fees, distribution fees,
fee agent fees, units repurchased, investment management fees, administrator fees, custody fees, transfer
agent fees and agent member company fees.

(B) RecognitionDerecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument, Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which
the Seres Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash ows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial liabilties are derecognized when its contractual obligations are discharged, canceled
or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are inkially recognized at fair value with transaction
costs recognized in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, Gains and losses arising from changes in the
fairvalue ofthe financial assets and liabilities at fair value through proft or loss’ category are presentedin the Statement
of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of investments are
calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilties other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interast rate method, less mpairment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to
the short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for
which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in accordance
with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in unrealized gains or
losses are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency, commaodity
or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or another financial asset. Forward
contracts are valued using observable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied to notional
amounts stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on financial assets
through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{F) Investment in the Selected Fund

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the Net Asset Value in the Selected Fund. The Selected
Fund is denominated in USD. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Senes
Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and condtions of the Selected Fund's offering
documentation. The Series Trust records its investments in the Selected Fund at fair value based primarily on the
Selected Fund's net assets value ("TAVT), as determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust
reviews the details of the reported information obtained from the Selected Fund's administrator and considers: (i) the
liquidity of the Selected Fund, or its underlying investments, (i} the value date of the MAV provided, (i) any restrictions
on redemptions, and (iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Series Trust invests substantially all of its assets in the
Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is generally based on net
capital appreciation or depreciation, respactively, of the Selected Fund. The value ofthe Seres Trust's investment in
the Selected Fund is based on available information and does not necessarily represent the amount that might
ultimately be realized, as such amount depends on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be denominated unlit
the Selected Fund's underlying investment are actually liquidated. Further, the Series Trust's
investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions, if any, of the liquidity of the Selected Fund's
investmeants.

The Series Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business
day. The Series Trust may submit to the Trustee ofthe Selected Fund er its duly designated agent a Repurchase Notice
requesting to have all or a porion its units repurchased on the relevant repurchase date. The Trustee of the
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Selected Fund should receive the repurchase notice by electronic transmission on or prior to 7:00 a.m. Eastern Time
in the United States of America on the applicable repurchase date. If such nofice is not respect of the entire holding
units of the Series Trust, then the Trustee of the Selected Fund in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase
requirement of more than one unit or TRY 10 {or its equivalent in any currancy).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
of realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at July 21, 2021 and July 31, 2020 all financial assets and
liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting and therefore
have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for sale and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for investments sold and payables for investments purchased represent trading transactions that have
been contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respectively. These amounts are
recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impaiment for amounts of receivables
for investments sold. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust
will not be able to collect all amounts of receiables for investments sold. Significant financial dificulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptey or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of receivables for investments sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

{A) Functional and Presentation Currency
The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U5, Dollars. The Trustee considers
the U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions,
events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in U.5. Dollars, which is the Series
Trust's functional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances
Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U.S. Dollar amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liahilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and expense
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. Dollar amounts on the respective dates of such
transactions.

Reperted net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in fereign exchange rates
on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The current policy of the Series Trust, in respect of the TRY Class Units, is that it is not expected to pay distributions
provided that, the Manager may, in s discretion, declare and pay distributions in respect of such class of units from
time to time. The SF Manager does not curently expect to declare distributions with respect to the Selected Fund.

Ifthe Manager does declare any distributions in respect of a class of units, it is anticipated that any such distributions
are declared on an annual basis on each distribution declaration date and may be made from investment principal
(& realization of units in the Selected Fund) attributable to such class of units.

There were no distributions declared and paid during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020
2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Series Trust classifies its puttable
instruments as liabilities in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: PFresentation.
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The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as
equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

=  The puttable instruments must enfitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;
= The puttable instruments must be the mest subordinated class and class features must be identical,

= There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or ancther financial asset other than the obligation
on the issuer to repurchase; and

* The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the
profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at July 31, 2021 and July 31,
2020.

Linits can be put back to the Seres Trust at any time for cash equal to a propartionate share of the Senes Trust's total
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Seres Trust's total equity per unit at the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of outstanding
units.

The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder's option and
entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust's net assets. The Series Trust holds shares in
the Selected Fund. The Seres Trust's maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Selected Fund is equal to the
total fair value of its investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the Selected
Fund the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Fosition date.

2.11 Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Met income from financial instruments at FYTPL includes realized and unrealized gains or losses on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FUTPL is
calculated using the first in, first out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
represents the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale trade.

Met change in unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilties at FWTPL represents the
difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price
if it was purchased in the current reporting period and its camrying amount at the end of the reporting period, Refer to
Mote & for further details.
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2.12 Taxation
The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local income, profits
and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. Mo such taxes are levied in the Cayman lslands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Mo withholding tax
expense was paid during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the peried ended Julby 31, 2020,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the
Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore,
such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a ‘withholding' basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 — fncorme Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax lability to be assessed on the Series Trust's capital gains sourced
from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and
circumstances. The tax liabilty is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities
using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, There
is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates
uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring
any uncertain tax liabilties management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time
which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices ofthe relevant tax authorities.

As at July 31, 2021 and Juky 31, 2020 the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to
record for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager's
best estimate there remains a risk that the foraign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned
by the Series Trust, This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result
in a loss tothe Series Trust,

2.13 Investment in uncensolidated structured entities
The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it holds an interest but does
not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the following:
= the woting rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they relate to
administrative tasks only;
= the entities' activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering documents; and
= these entities have a namow and well-defined objective to provide investment opportunities to investors.

The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust's interest in the other funds are disclosed in Mote 5.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Met Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is caleulated by dividing the Met Asset Value of the Series Trust
by the total number of units of the Series Trust then cutstanding. The Administrator computes the MNet Asset Value of
the Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, s calculated and paid in Turkish Lira.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a subscription application,
The initial purchase price of units is TRY10 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in Turkish Lira.
The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an aligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in Turkish Lira. The Trustee may reject any
subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 6:00 p.m. (Japan

time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscripion date. Subscription applications are
irrevocable.
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The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of July 31, 2021 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per

Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit
Class TRY Unis ¥ 33481618 22,708,348 ] 1.5625

Met Asset Value per

Classes of units Total net assets Units sutstanding wiriit
Class TRY Units TRY 298826177 22705548 TRY 131592

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of July 31, 2020 were as follows:

Net Asget Value per

Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

Class TRY Units 3 33914 283 21455319 % 1.5807
Met Asset Value per

Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

Class TRY Uinits TRY 236,798 631 21455219  TRY 11.0368

As of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 all issued units were held by two unitholders, who hold 100% of interest in the
net assets.

Unitholders may transfer their holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall
not be unreasenably withheld or delayed, Mo transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder
until entered into the Seres Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all ora
portion of ks units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may be
submitted in units. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder recarded in the register
ofunitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase
notices are imevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Amounts payable to the unitholders in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may be
made in kind {or partially in kind} by the distribution of investments held by the Trustee tothe extent that the Trustes,
in consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholders. If such a determination is
made by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

Fayment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as

a unitholders may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payabie to such
unitholders. Mo such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.
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During the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 the proceeds from units issued, repurchased
and outstanding were as follows:

At Proceeds from units Proceeds from units At
Classes of units July 31, 2020 igsued repurchased July 31, 2021
Class TRY Units $ IGB4E68 § 14270837 § {12,165.275) % 39,000,228

At

July 29, 2019
({Commencement of Proceeds from units Proceeds from units At

Classes of units Operations) issued repurchased July 31, 2020
Class TRY Units % - % 41854,188 § (4.759,523) % 36,594 665

During the yvear ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 the number of units issued. repurchased and
outstanding were as follows:

At At
Cl of units July 31, 2020 Units Issued Units repurchased July 31, 2021
Class TRY Units 21455319 9,265 040 (2.011,861) 22708548

At

July 29, 2018
{Commencement of At

Classes of units Operations) Units issued Units repurchased July 31, 2020
Class TRY Units = 24 353 267 [2.897.548) 214553149

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any
circumstances where the calculation of the Met Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholders
of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lited, Subscription applications and repurchase
notices cannot be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase
date, as the case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, Estimates are confinually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation technigues. Where valuation technigues (for example, models) are used
to determine fair values, they are validated and periodicalty reviewed by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust's activities expose it
to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit rick and liquidity
risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund. For example,
if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the Selected
Fund and, in turn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower
returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting
in increased portfolio risk, The ZSelected Fund may restrict s investment activities or be precluded from
investing in certain instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise,
which may have an adverse effect on the performance ofthe Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.
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(A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Investment in the Selected Fund and forward contracts in which the Series Trustinvests may be denominated or quoted
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason. changes in foreign currency
exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust's portfolio,

Generally, when the Series Trust's functional currency rises in value against ancther currency, a security denominated
in that currency loses value bacause the curmency is worth |ess giving effect to the conversion into the Series Trust's
functional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust's functional cumrency decreases in value against ancther
currency, a security denominated in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk,” means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
retumns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Cumency rates
may fluctuate significantly over short perods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the govermments, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments, As a result, the
Series Trust's investments in foreign-currency denominated investments may reduce its returns. Certain positions taken
by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting currency price movements. Predicting future prices is
inherently uncertain andthe losses incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The speculative
aspect of attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved in attempting
to predict relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed to the performance
of a particular currency or currencies to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be no assurance
that the Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses attributable to its
currency activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currencies of the Series Trust.
In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy designated by the
Manager.

The table below summarizes the Series Trust's exposure to currency risks at July 31, 2021:
Financial Assets

at Fair Value % of Net
At Cash and Cash  through Profit or Fereard Cither Assets and Asset
July 31, 2021 Equivalents Loss” Contracts Liabilities (Met) et Value
Turkash Lira Y § - % - % 1526117 § 3489960 % 5,016,085 14 1%
- - 1,526,117 3,450 968 5,016,066 14.1%
Urated States Doflar S0 184,530 33 B50 430 - {3,340 437) 30 485 532 BE 4%
5 164,530 § 33,650 439 § 1,526,117 § 140,532 § 25,481,618 T00.0°%

*Exchy ding demvateve financeal instruments

The table below summarizes the Series Trust's exposure to currency risks at July 31, 2020:
Financial Assets

at Fair Value % of Net
At Cash and Cash  through Profit or Foreard Cither Assets and Assat
July 31, 2020 Egquivalents Loss® Centracts Linbilities (Mat} Nat Value
Turkish Lira TRY § - § ] (778.2449) § 107024 § 672225 2014
: : (779,248] 07 024 %?EE} lr?ﬁm
Uriated States Dolar USD 189 473 34,146 053 - 250,882 4 586 508 107 0%
E] 189,423 § 34,146,093 § {779,249} E] 358016 § 33,914 263 100.0°%

*Excluding demvatre financal instruments

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the Series Trust's assets and liabilities to changes in foreign exchange
movements at July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign
exchange rate increased/{decreased) against the U.5. Dollar by the percentages disclosed in the table, with all cther
variables held constant. This represents management's best estimate of a reasonably possible shift in the foreign
exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rates.
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Reasonably possible
shift in cumrency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2021 _ Met Assels
TRY - 21.77% - -3 1,092 002
Reagonably possible
shift in cumency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2020 Met Asgets
TRY ke 6.01% o+ £ 174 846

Currency Forwards are entered into for the account of the TRY Class Units with the aim of eonverting the U.S. Dallar
exposure into a Turkish Lira exposure by providing the unitholders of the TRY Class with a long Turkish Lira exposure
to foreign exchange rate fluctuations in the currency rate between Turkish Lira (in which the TRY Class Units are
denominated) and LS. Dollar (in which the Class C (USD) Class Units of the Selected Fund are denominated).

{Ti) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of ficed income securities generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer term securities generally change more in response to interest
rate changes than prices of shorter term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-term or long-term interest
rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. VWhen interest rates
fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt
security. The bigger the secunty's duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given
movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Met Asset \Value may fuctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less
than three months and the investment in the Selected Fund.

The vield on the Selected Fund's {(and indirectly, the Series Trust's) investments may be sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund's asset yield and borrowing rates
and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

Ifinterest rates increase, prices of fived income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the Selected Fund's
{and indirectly, the Seres Trust's) investments. A major change in interest rates or a significant decline in the market
value ofthe Master Fund's {and indirectly, the Trust's) investments, or other market event, could cause the value ofthe
investments of the Master Fund's investors (and indirectly the unitholders’ investments in the Series Trust), or its yield,
to decline.

If interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the
values of shorter-duration debt securities,

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of the Selected
Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may resull in an

increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.

At Juby 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other variables
remaining constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Seres Trust (being increase in net
assets attributable to the holders of units from operations for the period) would amount to approximately $823 and 5847,
respectively, assuming that the cash position will be held for one vear.

(1ii) Market Price Risk

The market price of investments cwned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or
down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Sacurities may decline in value due to factors affecting securties markets
generally or particular industries represented in the securities markets, The value of a security may decline due to
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse
economic conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instrumants, changes in the general cutlook for
corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also

decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production
costs and competitive conditions within an industry. During a general downturn in the secunties markets, multiple
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asset classes may decline in value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volalility than fixed
income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020, would
have increased the total equity by 3336,504 and $341.461, respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal,
have an equal but opposite effect,

The following table summarizes the concentration in market price rigk of the Selected Fund's at July 31, 2021 as a
percentage of net assets ofthe Selected Fund.

Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investments in securities
Australia 5 7,367,314 1.3%
Bermuda 1,176,981 0.2%
Canada 503,126 0.1%
Cayman Islands 56,571,847 9.8%
Chile 801,817 0.1%
Denmark 5,632 166 1.0%
Finland 1,319,753 0.2%
France 1,417,898 0.2%
Germany 2,201,783 0.4%
Hong Kong 1,702,210 0.3%
India 4,296,703 0.7%
Ireland 18,260,538 3.2%
lsrael 6,606,452 1.1%
Japan 20,866,773 3.6%
Multinational 4,977 564 0.9%
Meatherdands 7,457,854 1.3%
Saudi Arabia 1,207,375 0.2%
Singapore 2,714,852 0.5%
South Korea 3,779,249 0.7%
Switzerand 2 553 968 0.4%
United Araly Emirates 3,011,475 0.5%
United Kingdom 49,258 417 8.5%
Unitad States 260,257,727 43.3%

Total investment in secunties 3 453,974,841 78.5%
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(Exprassed in U.S. Doflars)

The following table summarizes the concentration in market price risk of the Selected Fund's at July 31, 2020 as a
percentage of net assets ofthe Selected Fund.

Country Name Fair Value % of Met Assets
Investments in securities
Australia 3 3,844,830 0.9%
Bermuda 1,722,347 0.4%
Canada 4,683 202 1.1%
Cayman Islands 31,081,490 7.2%
Chile 795,563 0.2%
Denmark 2,129,324 0.5%
Finland 1,304,029 0.3%
France 508,679 0.1%
Germany 803,034 0.2%
Hong Kang 1,702,414 0.4%
India 3,726,978 0.9%
Ireland 11,567,044 2.7%
Israel 459 158 0.1%
Japan 37,248,773 8.6%
Luxembourg 600,223 0.1%
Metherlands 8,201,924 1.8%
Qatar 1,014,289 0.2%
Saudi Arabia 508 670 0.1%
Singapore 5,113,936 1.2%
South Korea 2312473 0.5%
Switzerdand 3,791,741 0.9%
United Arab Emirates 3,009,150 0.7%
United Kingdom 63,305,880 14.7%
United States 218,071,570 50.5%
‘irgin Islands 1,010,424 0.2%
Total investment in secunties ] 408,518,145 94 6%
(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer's credi rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of
the Series Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the
issuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credi risk associated with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund, All transactions in listed securities held by the Selected Fund are
settled/paid for upon delvery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of
investments sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the

securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation,

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all inancial assets ofthe Seres Trust as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 is
the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. Mo collateral or cther credt enhancements are

held by the Series Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund's security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian, At July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 substantially all cash and cash equivalents and investments are placed
in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.
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(Expressed in U.S5. Doflars)

The following table summarizes the credt quality of the Selected Fund's debt portfolio at July 31, 2021 as

a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Aaa
Aal
Aaz
Aad
Ad
AZ
AZ
Baad
Baa2
Baa3
Bai
Baz
Ba3
B
B2
B3
MR

Rating*

% of Net Assets
27.3%
4 9%
0.0%
1.2%
3.9%
0.5%
5.3%
4.3%
&4 4%
8.6%
1.8%
1.7%
0.3%
0.5%
0.0%
0.1%
13.7%

78.5%

“Secunly ratings, il any, are oblamead rom Moody sFf S&F s/ Fitch' s Irvastor Semvice

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund's debt portfolio at July 31, 2020 as

a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating* % of Net Assets

Agna 23.4%
Aal 0.4%
Aa2 0.4%
Aa3 2.6%
Al T.0%
A2 6.7%
A3 10.2%
Baai 4.8%
Baa2 11.0%
Baa3d 12.0%
Bai 1.3%
Ba2 2.0%
Ba3 0.3%
Bi 0.6%
B3 0.2%
Caal 0.2%
MR 11.58%
84.6%

"Secunly ratings, Il any, ane oblamead from Moody s/ S&F s/ Filch' s Investor Senvica

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust's investments in illiquid
securities may reduce the retums of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at an
advantageous time or price. Tothe extent that the Series Trust's principal investrent strategies involve derivatives or
securities with substantial market andfor credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the greatest expasure to liquidity

risk.

14
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(Expressed in U.5. Doflars)

The tables below analyze the Series Trust's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows,

At July 31, 2021 Less than 1 month 1-3 months Total

Fayables for
Purchase af imvestmant in Selectod Fund  § ZATES2T $ - § 3ATE 527
Professional fess 20,188 - 20,188
Distrnibution fees 1777 - 17AT7
Urpits repurchased 13480 - 13,469
Fe agant feas 146522 - 14 622
Irvestiment management feas 0446 - 9,446
Adminisirator fees T5T2 - 7.5712
Custody feas 6,132 = 6192
Transfer agent fees 2365 - 2,365
Agent member company faes 270 - 270

Contractual cash out flows {excluding net

asgsets attributable to the holders of units) $ 3587 BIE i = $ JEET 828

At July 31, 2020 Less than 1 month 1 -3 months Total

Payables for
Urnts repunchasad $ 186,376 ks - $ 186 376
invesiment management feas 38709 - 38,709
Distribution fees 3479 - 34 o
Frofessional feas 18250 - 18,250
Custody fees 7041 - 7,041
Fea agent fess 3180 - 3,190
Transfer agent feas 2,750 - 2,750
Furchase of imeestment in Selected Fund E44 - B4
Agent member company fees 296 - 206

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net

assets attributable to the holders of units)  § 283,247 1 - & 203 247

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an on-going basis.
Liguidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

The following tables summarize the Series Trust's derivative financial instruments at July 31, 2021 and Juby 31, 2020
with gross settlement for which the contractual maturities are considered to be essential to an understanding of the
timing of cash flows based on the Series Trust's investment strategy. The amounts disclosed in the table represent the
undiscounted cash flows,

A Juby 31, 2021 Lezs than 1 manth 1-3 months Greater tham 3 months Taotal

Grozs seftled derivatives
Fonward contracts

“Outflienwy $ a4 347 007 4§ - % - % 14 347 047
-Indow 35,869,114 - - 35,869,114
At Juby 31, 2020 Less than 1 month 1-3 months Greater than 3 months Taotal

Gross settled derivatives
Fonward contracts
-Ciutfleny 3 70,701,925 £ 4037272 % - % 104,739, 197

- 70,341 980 35617968 : 103,959 845
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For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Expressed in U.S5. Doflars)

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with unitholders
repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed to include
liquid investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Series Trust
could require the Selected Fund to liquidate its imvestments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash
for the repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of the units repurchased and the valuation of the
units that remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Series Trust's remaining assets if more liquid assets have been
sold to meet the repurchases,

There were no repurchase fees applied in respact to the Selected Fund for the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period
ended July 31, 2020,

(D) Risk Management
The Series Trust's Investment Manager’'s team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of units.
The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust
is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unithalder. The Series Trust's objective when
managing capital is to safequard the Seres Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust's pelicy
is to perform the following:

= Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative tothe liquid assets and adjust the amount
of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

= Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional decuments of the Series Trust,
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.
3.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

{A) Custody Risk

Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's entire holding of indirect
investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insobrent,
causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Met Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settiement Risk

Seltlernent and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States, the
European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve
certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the setiement of
Linited States imsestments. At times, settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of
securities transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry
out transactions for the account of the Seres Trust. If the Manager cannot setile or is delayed in settling
a purchase of securities, it may miss attractive investment opportunities and cerdain of the Series Trust's assets may
be uninvested with no return earned thereon for some period.

Ifthe Selected Fund and ulimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in seltling a sale of securties, the Series
Trust may lose money if the value of the underying security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to
another party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurmed,

e
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(Expressed in US. Dollars)
(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust's investments or to seek to enhance the Series
Trust's returns. Dervatives allow the risk exposure of the Seres Trust to increase or decrease more quickly and
efficiently than other types of instruments, Dernvatives are volatile and invohve significant risks, including:

+ Credit Risk —the risk that the counterparty (the party on the cther side ofthe transaction) on a derivative transaction
will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Senes Trust,

+ Leverage Risk — the risk associated with certain types of investrnents or trading strategies that relatively small market
movemeants may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain investments or trading strategies that
involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

» Liquidity Risk — the risk that cerain securities may be dificul or impossible to sell at the ime that the seller would
like or at the price that the seller believes the securty is currently worth.

The Manager may use dervatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust's holdings.
While hedging can reduce loszes it can also reduce of eliminate gains of cause losses if the markel moves in
a manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative cutweighs the benefit of the
hedge. Hedging also involres the risk that changes in the value of the dervative will not match those of the holdings
being hedged as expected by the Manager, inwhich case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be reduced
and may be increasad. There i no assurance that the Seres Trust's hedging strateqy will reduce risk or that hedging
tranzactions are either available or cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the Series Trust and
may choose not to do so. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Series Trust's returns, its
investrnents will expose the Seqes Trust to the risks ocutlined above to a greater extent than if the Manager used
derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivatives to seek to enhance retumns is considered speculative.

Az of July 31, 2021, had the Seres Trust been siubject to nelting arangaments and similar agreements
the derivative assets and Babilities would have been presented as follows:

et Amounts of
Financial Assets

Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offset Presented in the
Recegnized inthe Staterment of the Staternent of
Derivative Assets Counterparty Financial Assets Financial Position Financial Positien
Forward contracts [==2 § 1544578 § - % 1544 576
3 1544576 § = & 1544 576

Related amounts not offset in the Statement of Financlal Pozition

Met Amounts of
Financial Assets
Presented in the

Statement of Cash Collateral
Derivative Assets Counterparty Financial Position Financial Instruments Received Met Amount
Forward contrads C5 ] 1544576  § [18459) § - §
3 1544516 § 18459 $ - %
22
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For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Met Amounts of

Financial
Liabilities
Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offset Presented in the
Drerivative Recognized inthe Statement of the Statemnent of
Liabilitie s Counterpa Financial Liabilitles Financial Position Financial Position
Farward contracts cs § (18.450] § - § {18 459)
$ 1184549) £ - % 118 459)

Related amounts not offzet In the Statement of Financial Positien

Met Amounts of
Financial Liabdlites
Presented in the
Drerivative State ment of Cash Caollateral
Liabilitie s Counterparty Financial Poszition Financial Instruments Pledged et Amount
Fonward contracds CE 3 {18459]) § 18459 § -_§ =
kS {18.459) % 18450 % - -

Counterparty Glossary’:
5 = Cradit Swrsse Infemational

As of July 31, 2020, had the Series Trust been subject to nelting arrangements and similar agreements,
the derivative assets and liabilittes would have been presented as follows:

Mat Amounts of
Financial Assets

Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offset Presented in the
Recognized inthe Statement of the Statement of
Derivative Assets Counterparty Financial Assets Financial Position Financial Position
Forward contracts o5 3 209613 £ - 3 205613
§ 205613 £ - 3 205613

Related amounts not offset in the Statement of Financial Position

Met Amounts of
Financial Assats
Presented in the

Statement of Cash Collateral
Derivative Assets  Counterparty Financial Positien Financial Instruments Received Het Amount
Farward contracds Ccs § 205613 £ [205613) % - =
3 205613 8§ [205613) & - § -
b
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(Exprassad in U5, Dalfars)

Met Amounts of

Financial
Liakilities
Gross Amounts of Grogs Amaunts Offget Presented in the
Dervative Recognized inthe Statement of the Statement of
Liabilities Counterparty Financial Liabilitie s Financial Position Financial Position
Fonsard contracts Cs i (484 862) % - % (G54 862
i (ig BB § - § (954 862

Related amounts not offset in the Statement of Financial Position

Met Amounts of
Financial Liabilities
Presented in the
Drerivative Staterment of Cash Collateral
Liabilitie= Counterparty Fimancial Position Financial Instruments Pledged Met Amount
Farward contracts C5 i [484 862 % MEE1T £ = (774 3449]

(334 861§ 205615 F (779.749]
—

=

Ll

Counterparty Glossary:
C5 - Credit Suisss Intermnational

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial insttutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodan, with which
the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties
and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Senes Trust. Any such default could result in matenal
losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. Mo collateral was pledged by the Manager during the year ended
Juby 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial as=zets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(F) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in
units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

(G) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchass Day
will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur,

{H) Other Risk

In March 2020, the CCVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the Woerld Health Organization. The situation
remains dynamic with various cities and countries arcund the world responding in different ways to address the
outbreak. Uncertainty remains regarding the length of the disruption, as well asthe ultimate mpact, which the pandemic
may have on economic and market conditions globally. The value of assets held in the Series Trust has not been
adiusted due to COVID-19, and Management notes no significant performance issues for the Seres Trust as a result
ofthe pandemi:.

Management and the Trustee are monitoring developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating its operational
response based on existing business continuty plans and on guidance from global health organizations, relevant
govenments, and general pandemic response best practices.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Seres Trust applies IFRS 13 Farr value measuremert and utilizes the last traded market price for its fair valuation
inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liakslity take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
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{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilties that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a varety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each period end date. WValuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options,
currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models
and other valuation techniques commaonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Fer instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed medels, which are
usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry, Some of the
inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output
of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are
ul'lifﬂrﬂrﬂ adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty
risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

= Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

*  Level 3inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entiraty
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in s entirety. If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurement is a Level 3 measurement, Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advizernent of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers cbservable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively invalved in the relevant market,

The following is a surmmary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of July 31, 2021 in valuing the Series
Trust's financial assets:

{Unadjusted) Quoted

Prices in Active Significant
Markets for Identical Significant Other Unobszervable
Financial Asset at Fair Value Investments Observable Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Through Profit or Loss {Level 1) Level 2) {Level 3) July 31, 2021
Investment in the Selected Fund
FICO Short-Term Strategy
Class C (U3D Class) ¥ - % 33650439 % - 33650439
Investment in ferward confracts - 1544 576 - 1544 5TE
Financial assets at fair value
throu rofit or loss £ - % 35195015 § - % 195015
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss
Investment in ferward contracts £ - % (18459 % $ {18 459)
Finmancial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss % - % (18,458) % - 5 {18,459)
25
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{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The follewing is a summary of the fair valuations aceording to the inputs used as of July 31, 2020 in valuing the Series
Trust's financial assets:

{Unadjusted) Quoted
Prices in Active Significant

Markets for Identical Significant Other Unobservable
Financial Azzet at Fair Value Investments Obsarvable Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Through Profit or Loss (Level 1} {Level 2) {Level 3) July 31, 2020
Investment in the Selected Fund
PRACO Short-Term Strateagy y
Class C {USD Class) $ - % 446,083 F - % 24,146,093
Irrastmant in farward conbracts - 205 613 - 205613
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss % - 5% 34351706 % - % 34,351 706
Financial Liakilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss
Ircestmant in farward conbracts £ - 2 (934 8621 % - 5 (984 BEZ)
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss $ - § {304 862) $ - {984, 862)

During the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3,

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quetations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2.
These include overthe-counter derivatives and debt securities, As Level 2 investments include positions that are not
traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andfor
non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Financial assets and liabilities not camied at fair value through profit or loss

i At July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilties (including
prepaid fees, receivables for units issued and sale of investment in the Selected Fund and payables for
purchase of investrment in the Selected Fund, professional fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, units
repurchased, investment management fees, administrator fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees and agent
mermber company fees) are deemed short-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts
approximate fair value because of their short-term nature. Refer to Mote 2 for a description of the valuation
technigques.

34 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 the Selected Fund's net asset value was 3578,530,648 and $431,728 545,
respectively. As of July 31, 2021 the Selected Fund held total investments of $507, 764, 397 comprising of fixed income
securities (agency bonds, asset backed securities, corporate bonds and notes, mortgage-backed securties, municipal
bonds and notes, sovereign issues, .S, government agencies, U5, government obligations) of $453,974, 841, short-
term instruments (commercial paper, UL5. treasury bills, short-term government issues and time deposits) of
$123,578 883, futures contacts of 5(2 020, 798), forward contracts of 5{(67,548,155), swaps contracts of ${165,074) and
written options contracts of $(55,300), As of July 31, 2020 the Selected Fund held total investments of 5431, 148,133
comprising of fived income securities (agency bonds, asset backed-securities, corporate bonds and notes, mortgage-
backed securties. municipal bonds and notes, sovereign issues, U.S. government agencies, U.S. government
obligations) of 3408,518,145, short-term instruments (certificates of deposit, commercial paper, U.5. treasury bills,
short-term notes, repurchase agreements and time deposits) of 533,488 616, futures contacts of 3587, 258, forward
contracts of $2 254,726, reverse repurchase agreements of 512 495 008), swaps contracts of $(1,187,522), written
credit default swaptions of 3(1,269) and written options contracts of 3(17,813). The valuation of investments in
unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Senes Trust would expect to receive ifit were toliquidated
of redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund’s liquidity or redemption restrictions and costs.

The Selected Fund is financed through equity capital provided by investors, include the Series Trust, During the year

ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 the Seres Trust did not provide any other financial suppart to
the Selected Fund and has no intention of providing financial or other support to this entity,

159/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO Short Term Strategy

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Expressed in U.S5. Doflars)

The rights attached to the Series Trust's holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of other investors. Subscriptions
intc the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering docurments. The Series
Trust has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments perodically in accordance with the provisions of the
respective fund agreements, Refer to Mote 1 for information regarding the investment cbjectives ofthe Selected Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward contracts for the Selected Fund by buying forward
contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, to approximately 100% of the USD
exposure of the Met Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

The Currency Administrator enters into currency forward transactions with the Trustes (solely in its capacity as trustee
of the Seres Trust) for the account of the TRY Class Units, with the aim of ensuning stability on a TRY basis. Pursuant
to the Currency Forwards, the Trustee (solely in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust) sells U.5. Dollars and buys
Turkish Lira, in each case on a forward (typically one month) basis, in a notional amount equal, to the extent possible,
to approximately 100% of the Met Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses). In addition, Currency
Forwards are to be executed by delivery settlement on their maturity date but not by net setlement. The Currency
Forwards are administered by the Currency Administrator.

Forward Contracts Outstanding at July 31, 2021 (4.3% of Net Assets)

et Unrealized

Settlement Appreciation

E':_n Cw Cm Amount Eoll._r-lht Cumency Amount Sold 1E!mhﬁnn1
iR [ e cs TRY 268 902 261 s (30331,459) § 1,484 158
08201 s TRY 34,044 s [9.548) 386
oanozom c5 TRy 154,934 uso (17.872) 360
oanomzom e TRY 133612 us0 (3.270,375) 58,300
ganonznH c5 TRy &ET 630 us0 (113,125) 1,362
oanozo =] Rijn) 12,768 TRY (201,965) [1,128)
oanmzma C5 LSO 6,030 TRY [53,315) [27TE)
ganozox ] Hin) 40,263 TRY (356,761) [1.848)
Danozm Cs S0 58518 TRY (522,000} [2.244)
gannznx c5 usD 90,901 TRY (875,003) [3.626)
oanwzoa 5 LsD 9B, TET THY (364 552) [3.504)
oanmzoa e usD 16,523 TRY (B658,530) (1,510
oanowzoa S s 179,210 TRY [1.542,38) [4.221)
E i Egg 117

Counterparty Glossary:
C5 = Credit Suisse Intemnational

27
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Expressed in U.S5. Doflars)

Forward Contracts Outstanding at Juby 31, 2020 {(2.3)% of Met Assets)

Hat Unrealized

Settlemant Appreciation/

Date Counterparty LCurrency Amount Bought Cumency Amount Sold {Depreciation]
Qam¥z020 =] TRY 245,185,107 o (FE33 TN % [SE5.558)
08072020 [ LSO 35273788 TRY (245,795,107) 205,813
091072020 5 TRY M1 4728 us0 (34.037,272) (419,306}
] [779.248)

Counterparty Glossary:
C5 = Credit Suisse International

7.NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

July 31, 201 July 31, 2020
Met loss on Enancial assets and liabiities af fair velue
through profit and loss consast of the following
Net realized gain on irvestments in the Selected Fund £ 493 554 3 B9 515
Met realiz ed 1085 on investments in forward contracts [ 720 189} {2 458 328}
Total net reakzed loss on Snancal asseds and habilties 81 fair
value through profit or loss 5 (22216250 & (2389313}
Movement in net unrealzed (depraciahon fappracation on
irvastrments in the Salacted Fumd £ (41,196} $ 617,385
Movement in unrealzed appreciation/{depreciation) on
invastrnent in forward contracts 2 305 366 (779 249)
Total net change n unrealized appreciationddepreciation jon
financial assots and babilties at fair value through profit or loss $ 2 264 170 i [161 864}

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

{A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US3500 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the next
LISS500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over U331 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of
£3.750. The fees eamed by the Adminiztrater during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020
and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives an annual fee of 0.025% of Met Assets Value. The fees earned by the Custodian during the
year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 and cutstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of July
31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of
Financial Position, respectively.

{C) Distribution Fees

Effective May 1, 2021, the Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.42% ofthe Net Asset \Value attributable to the TRY
Class Units payable monthly in arrears. Prior to April 30, 2021, the Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.60% of the
MNet Assat \Value attributable to the TRY Class Units payable monthly in arrears. The Distribution Fees are payable by
the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Distributor
during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor
as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.35% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in arrears,
The fees sarmned by the Investment Manager during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020
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Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended July 31, 2021
(Expressed in U.S5. Doflars)

and outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a 310 fee per transaction out of the
assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period
ended July 31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have
been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

{F) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the pericd ended
Juby 31, 2020 and cutstanding fees payable as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager, Agent Member
Company and Derivative Counterparty are all related parties to the Series Trust.

Thera wera no cther transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

{A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitted to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fived annual fee of 510,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees eamned by the Trustee during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 and
outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position. respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Met Assets Value ithe "Operational Costs Fees®), accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the trustee
out of the assels ofthe Series Trust, The fees eamed by the Fee Agent during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the
period ended July 31, 2020 and cutstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have
been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the manager fees, the Trustee fees and costs and expenses, which are, in the
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the manager fees and trustee
fees (the "Ordinary Costs").

Feor the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the investment manager fees, audit
fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees relating to security
transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses, annual fees payahble in
respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies, any insurance costs, any costs
relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 32 and other similar offering documents and the costs relating to
the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or disposal
of secunties, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance
and monitoring, expenses related to the termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary
costs and expenses that would not usually occur.

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for
any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees accrue daily on an actual f 365 day count fraction basis and are payable quarterly in

arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first accrual period only, the initial closing day, and for all
other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter,
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(C) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive cut of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of 35,000 per annum payable
monthly in arrears, The fees earned by the Manager during the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July
31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent
fees,

(D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitted to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Asset Value attributable to the
TRY Class Units payable quattery in amears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on
behalf of the Manager cut of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamned by the Agent Member Company during
the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member
Comparry as of July 31, 2021 and July 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income and
the Staternent of Financial Position, respectively.

{E) Derivative Counterparty

The Series Trust is permitted to enter into forward contracts with Credit Suisse International, a related party to the
Manager. During the year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 there was net realized loss of
2720255 and 32457984, respectively, and there was change in unrealized appreciation/{depreciation) of
$2 305,366 and (3779,249), respectively, on forward contracts with Credt Suisse International which is disclosed in
the Staterment of Comprehensive Income.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash fiows. During the
year ended July 31, 2021 and the period ended July 31, 2020 the Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

It was announced on September 7, 2021 BEH & Co. ("BEH") has entered into an agreement with State Street
Corporation (“State Street”) under which State Street will acquire BBH's Investor Services business; which includes its
custody, fund accounting and administration, transfer agency, depositary services, foreign exchange and securities
lending services. The transaction is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2022, subject to customary closing
conditions and regulatory approvals. BBH and State Street are committed to providing uninterrupted service and a
seamiess transition for our clients.

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 30, 2021, the date on which
these financial statements were available to be issued, Effective August 1, 2021 through November 30, 2021, there
were subscriptions of 53,913,155 and repurchases of $3,227 315. There are no other subsequent events to report as
relates to the Series Trust,
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23,692,264.98 2,695,468,987
635,392.91 72,288,651
23,056,872.07 2,623,180,335
23,150,915
1.00 113
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1,837,805,328
10,864,613
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5,959,894,057
306,143,383
27 178,760,370,789
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2020 2019

UsD UsD
16,025 1,823 34,534 3,929
16,025 1,823 34,534 3,929
16,025 1,823 34,534 3,929
220,000 25,029 215,000 24,461
(21) @
236,025 26,853 249,513 28,387
(111,476) (12,683)  (143,734) (16,353)
124,549 14,170 105,779 12,034
124,549 14,170 105,779 12,034
124,549 14,170 105,779 12,034
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2020 12 31

2020 2019

usb usb
9 1,643,796 187,015 1,436,186 163,395
10 220,970 25,140 217,427 24,737
1,864,766 212,154 1,653,613 188,132
10 217,933 24,794 131,329 14,941
217,933 24,794 131,329 14,941
11 735,000 83,621 735,000 83,621
911,833 103,739 787,284 89,569
1,646,833 187,360 1,522,284 173,190
1,864,766 212,154 1,653,613 188,132

2021 10

Brian Burkholder
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usb usb usD
2020
735,000 83,621 787,284 89,569 1,522,284 173,190
124,549 14,170 124,549 14,170
12 31 735,000 83,621 911,833 103,739 1,646,833 187,360
2019

735,000 83,621 681,505 77,535 1,416,505 161,156
105,779 12,034 105,779 12,034
12 31 735,000 83,621 787,284 89,569 1,522,284 173,190
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2020 2019
usD USD
124,549 14,170 105,779 12,034
(16,025) (1,823) (34,534) (3,929)
21 2
108,524 12,347 71,266 8,108
(3.543) (403) (10,575) (1,203)
(3.543) (403) (10,575) (1,203)
86,604 9,853 127,594 14,516
86,604 9,853 127,594 14,516
16,025 1,823 34,534 3,929
207,610 23,620 222,819 25,350
207,610 23,620 222,819 25,350
1,436,186 163,395 1,213,367 138,045
1,643,796 187,015 1,436,186 163,395
1,643,796 187,015 1,436,186 163,395
1,643,796 187,015 1,436,186 163,395
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309 c/o Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands
IFRS
IFRS 1AS
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IFRS
UsD
usD
usD
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IAS I1AS

1ASB IFRS

15

2020 2019

16,025 34,534
16,025 34,534
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2020 2019
220,000 215,000
220,000 215,000

2020 2019

(34,668)

(1,182) (191)
(3,201) (3,119)
(107,093) (105, 756)
(111,476) (143,734)

2039 10 10
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UK
AMP
a
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PIMCO
J REIT
AHL
SBI PICTET
J REIT
uS

2020

2020 2019
1,643,796 1,436,186
1,643,796 1,436,186

2020 2019

220,970 217,427
220,970 217,427
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2020 2019

217,933 131,329

217,933 131,329
2020 2019

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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13
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000
220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000
214,732 214,732 25,573 25,573
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
949,732 949,732 760,573 760,573
2020 2019
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
2020 2019
107,093 105,756
107,093 105,756
14

2020 12 31

183/235



15 2020 12 31
2020 12 31

16

17

2021

10

184/235

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Crack Suisge Managamen! (Capran) Limited
Financial sinfemanis far the year snded 31 Decombar 2020

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

IREERREOE o s e s AB0SD - BRBE
- of which Interast income from instruments af amortised cosf 16,005 34,534
Net interest income 4 16,025 34,534

‘Service fee income TR 900,000 215,000
Other loss - (21)
Met revenues 236,025 249,513

‘General, adminisirative and ofher operating expenses B (111,476) (143,734)
ﬂp-arating profit before allowance and taxation 124,549 105,779

Profit before tax 124,549 105,779

Income taxexpense 7 - -
Profit after tax 124,549 105,779

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cradit Sulsse Managamant (Cayman) Limitad

Molas fo Financial siilamants for the year ended 3] Decamber 2020

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

UsSD B;’“H"xﬂ 2020 2019
Assets

Cashanddue frombanks B 1643796 1,435,186
Otherassets 10 290970 000 917497
Total assets 1,864,766 1,653,613

Lmhilities .......................................

Other liabilities 10 217,933 131,329

Total liabilities 217,933 131,328

Shareholders’equily ... SRS
Sharecapital e 735000 .. 735,000
Retained earnings 911,833 TR 284

Total shareholders' equity 1,646,833 1,622,284

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,864,766 1,653,613

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10 June 2024

Director

ot B e et Bt

Brian Burkholder

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stat
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Credif Suses Managamand (Capman) Limited
Males fo Financial statements for ha year andad 31 Decembay 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Share  Retained

UsD capital eamings Teotal

i I

Balanceat 1lanvary 735000 787,284 1,522,284
Profit for the year — 124,549 124,549
Balance at 31 December 735000 911,833 1,646,833

L

Balanceattlanvay 735000 681505 1416505
Profit for the year — 105779 105,779
Balance at 31 December 735,000 787,284 1,522 284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statermernts.
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Crodi! Swsse Mansgemen! (Cayman) Limilsd
Nedas by Financinl statamants far the year ended 31 Decenibar 2000

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Raterarce 2020 2018
UsD lo Kole
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 124,549 105,779

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
generated from operating activities

Mon-cash items included in net profit before

tax and other adjustments:

Interast Income 4 {16,025) (34,534)
T e
Cash generated from operating activities

before changes in operating assets and

liabilities 108,524 71,266
Mk Uncressa) n opeeating assate:r i

Other assets - (3543)  (10,575)
Met (increase) in upera'tirbg assets (3,543) (10,575)
Netincrease in operating liabilities:
Other liabilities 86,604 127,594
Netincrease in operating liabilities 86604 127,594
Interest income received 4 16,025 34 534
Net cash generated from operating activity 207,610 222819
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 207,610 222819
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,436,185 1,013,367
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186
Cash and due from banks S| 1,643,796 1,436,188
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Creght Suisse Managoment (Cayman) Limiled
Mafes. o Financial stalements for the year anded 31 Decamber 2020

Notes to the financial statements
Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company®) is incorporated in the Cayman lslands
with limited [abilty. The Company's principal activities are the creafion of trusts and the administration
and management of assets in trusts. The Company's registered office is ¢/o Maples Corparate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Infernational Financial Reporting Standards, International Accourting Standards (lASs") and
Interpretations issued by Intemational Accounting Standards Board (MIASB"). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company is set out below,

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,

The preparafion of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
cireumnstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about camying values of
assets and liabilifies that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the peried of the revision and fulure periods if the revision affects both
curent and future periods.

Foreign currency

The Company's functional and presentation currency is United States Dollars ("USD®). Foreign
cumency transactions during the year are translated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting pericd. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are franslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, Mon-
menetary assefs and liabilties denominated in foreign curencies that are stated af fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or logs,
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Crpdll] Siisse Managaman! (Cayman) Limited
Notes fo Financhal shrlamants for fe pear andad 31 Decamber D020

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid imvestments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Other assets

Other assets are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amorised cost less
Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") (refer to Mote 2{g)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parfies without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtful
debts.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain iming or amount when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required io sefile the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Where the
time value of money s materal, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expectad to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated rellably, the cbligation is disclosed as a confingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will anly be confirmed
by the ocourrence or non-gccurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of ocutflow of economic benefits is remote.

Impairment

The carying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence
exists, the assel's recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting period. An
impairment loss s recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost, The impairment requirements are based on a forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorporating reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions available at the
reparting date. This requires considerable judgement ower how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on a probabiliy-weighted basis,

Revenue recognition

Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, service fee income is recognised in profit or lass when
the investment management service is provided.

Expenses

All expenses are recegnised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
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Credh Suisse Management (Cayman) Limilod
MNotes ko Financial s falements far the year ended 31 Decembar 2020

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Company if;
(@) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that person:
{i) has control or joint control aver the Compary;
{i) has significant influence over the Company; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(il The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member].

(i) Both entifies are joint veniures of the same third party.

(v} One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entily is an associate of the
third party.

&) The entrtrl'l:_.:r is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entily related to the Compary.

{vij The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

{vil) A person identified in (g} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the enfity),

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:
* Definition of Maleral — amendments 1o 1AS 1 and IAS 8
* Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in pricr periods
and are not expected fo significantly affect the cumrent or future periods.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting peried of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a material effect an how
the Company’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in Mote 2(k).

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (Mote 15),
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Net Interest Income

usb 2020 2019
Met interest income

Interest income on cash and due from banks 16025 34,534
Total interest income 16,025 34,534

All the above interast income on instruments are at amortised cost,

Service Fee Income

The principal activilies of the Company are the creafion of frusts and the administration and

management of assets in trusts.

Revenue represents investment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

usoD 2020 2019

Revenues

Total revenues 220,000 215,000
General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses
uso 2020 2019
General administrative and other operating expenses
Other expenses — (34,668)
Eankchargesﬁ.laﬁ}ugn
Auditor remuneralion T @90, B9)
Direciors' remuneration CUUT(107,093) (105,756)
Tolal general administrative and other operating expenses {111,476) {143,734)

All of the above expenditures are payable o the Company's immediate holding company and the

immediate holding company setiles such expenditures on behalf of the Company.

Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital taxes until 10 October 2089, Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included

in these financial statements,

10
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Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored unconsolidafed structured entities

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when elther its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the
market that the Compary is associated with the structured entity or the Company was involved in the
design or set up of the structured entity and has a form of involvement with the structured entity.

The below unconsolidated structured enfities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2019: USD 5,000) is received but no interest is held by the
Company as at 31 December 2020:

Ginbal REIT Incorne .ﬁ.lpha Fund {Fnr Guahﬁad Inshtul,lorlal Im'estﬂrs C}nt.r] S
_ALJSTraIIan ngh Dn.ndend E«qudy T'MI'I Alpha Fund (For Qualified Inslrtulx:nal Irr'.resiurs ﬂnl},r}

US REIT Premium Fund (Fur Qualified Institufional Investors t!nlf]

Daiwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
_F'nnn:npal_f_{.‘_.s Canadigr! Eqwq.r Income Fund {Fnr Ouahined Ins1|tubonal In_n.re_xsgors 'Dn_ }l ;
Global REIT Triple Premium Fund (For Qualified Insimmpnai Investors Cl'rﬂ}r}

LS High Div Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Instifutional Investars Gnly)
US Smali Cap Equrt'y Premium Fund {Fur Qualified Inshiutlor;al In'.restnrs Dnbrj

‘Daiwa Emarglng Local Mark.et Bund Fund {For {]ualrfued Institutional Imestor_s Dnl}r] S
US Preferred REIT In_l:x_:n_'le Fund lI[Fnr C!ual'rﬁﬁd Instrtt.monal I!m-'estors s Only)
Japan Eq_urt'_n,r Fremlum Fl.l'ﬂd {‘Far L‘Juahfued institutional Imrestnrs Cllnly}

"NB/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Quaiified Institutional Investors dﬁy}
Daiwa UK Hrgh ﬂhndend Equrtj!- Fur'rd (For Qualified Instli'utlun@f _In}-'estﬂm Onll.r]
AMP Australia Income Bond Fund L'Fcnr {]ualrﬁ&d Inshtut-una.l Irmastnrs Onl},fj
‘Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Daiwa Brazilian Real Emd Fund {Focr Duallfled 1nstlll.rtlanal 1n-.resturs Clnr;.r]l
Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
AMP Australia REH’ Fund I:Fnr {]ualmed Instuiu.munal Ims’mm Drﬂy}

J-R Ft‘EIT a.nd Real Estate Ec:|urt3«I Fund I{Fnr Dua]rfled Institutional Jnvasdn:n‘s Dnly}

garp.sa ‘American High Dividend Equity Ouattro Income Fund (For Qualified Insfitutional Investors
iyl

‘_Darwa ﬁamncan REFT Duattro [rv:ur'ne Fund (Fm Cmalihed Institutional Investg!s_ﬂnly}

.SHIE'ISEI Warld \ 'I.I'l.l'rap Stable Ty'pe [Fur Cluallfled Instlh.mnnaﬂ Irmastcrg f.'!nlg] ’ .
Shinsei V Wﬂﬂd Wrap Gr‘e.':'v-'ih T‘_.IPE {Fﬂr Dl.laliile:d |I'I5‘|ttL_ItIF_I‘I-_EI Investu.rs Only}
US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund {Fﬂr Gualrﬁad Institutional Irmestors Gnly}
Japanese Govemment Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (Fer Quaified institutional nvestors Only)
Australia REIT Fund

.Augl:rahaﬁE[THus e R B R e e e o
US Treasury 5-7 Year Ladder Fund {Fur Ch.raﬁﬁ:ed Im&mm[ Imrestnrs E}nl}r}
LS Muricipal Eond Fund
.TﬂkﬂMaﬂnE CATE(;H'H;' Fund e e R b e LA L e L LR L e R T PR L E R PR P
_Ghba.l ngh Dmdend Equt!)r F‘rernuum Fund I{Ful Dualrﬁad Inshtutmnal 1w&:‘.—.1m3 Only} o
_I'-.-'Iasl‘e:"s Cuﬂachun

HOLTE EU!'G Eqult)' Premium Fund [Fﬂr Cluallfled Instlluhnnal Imrgstnrs Oniy] R S
PIMCO Short Term income Strategy Fund

11
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Unconsclidated Structured Entities {(continued)

PIMC’D ‘Short Term Etrateg;r

‘Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onby)
Fnrergn Dennmmated ‘Man AHL Smart Leverage Straiegy Fund

SEI P‘i:clet Asla Hu-‘l'ech ‘ufenture Fund

AIJD Shnrt Term Bcnnd A e ok S AR o R 5
‘Asia Equﬂy Income Plus Stratag}r Fund- (Fol Qualified Inslﬂuhﬂnal lmrestars Dnl].r]

JREIT Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)” S

US'_ﬁi'a]u?Equrty ‘Concentrated Fund {Fc'r Qualified Institutional Imstars Ch'ﬂ].f}

Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified institutional investors Ony)”
Mlde C.untrul Equrl"_.r Fund I:Fm Duallfled Instllutlnnal Inl..festnls Dnl:.r}

* The funds were terminated during 2020,

The Comparty has not provided finandial ar other support to consclidated structured entifies that it was
not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not curently have the intenfion to provide financial or other suppord to
unconsolidated structured entities that it is not contractually required to provide.

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

usD 2020 2019
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,435,186
Total cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,436,186

Other Assets and Other Liahilities

usp 2020 2019
Other assets

Interest and fees receivable 220,970 217,427
Total other assets 220,970 217,427
uso 2020 2019
Other liabilities

Irterest and fees payable 217,933 131,329
Total other liabilities 217,933 131,329

12
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Motes to Financial slalernents for the year ended 31 December 2020

Share Capital

Authorised and issued share capital

2020 2019
Mo. of UusD Mo. of usb
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
Ordinary shares 736,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vole per share at general meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard fo the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a geing concern so that it can continue to provide relums to sharehalders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost, As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
objectives. The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity,

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
manzagement practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capifal struciure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, 1o
the: extent that these do not conflict with the directars’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current period,
Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidty, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business, These risks are managed by the Compary’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
ancther party by failing to discharge an obligation. Management regulardy monitors its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level, The maxmum exposure to credit risk is

represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.

13

195/235



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Crodit Suisze Managemend (Capman) Limiled
Metes o Financial statemants for the year ended 31 Dacembear 2020

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Company's policy is to regulardy monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its coniractual and
reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due,

At 31 Decarmbeer 2020 and 2019, all of the Company's financial liabilities, which includes all creditars
and aceruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be settled within three months.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank interest on cash
and deposits. At 31 December 2020 and 2018, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material effect on the camying value of the recognised assets or liabilities of the Company,

Foreign cumancy risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency nisk primarily through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (*HKD").

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers that the risk of movermments in exchange
rates between USD and HKD fo be insignificant.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2018,

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material related parly transactions.

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Parent Fellow Total Parant Fallow Tatal
Group Group
UsD Companies Companies
Assels
Mher assals - 990,853 20863 = 215,000 215,000
Total assets - 220,863 220,863 —_— 215,000 215,000
Liabkilities and Equity
Other labilties 214,732 — 214732 25573 - 26,573
Share capital 735,000 — 735000 7a5000 i 735,000
Total liabilities and
sharehalders' equity 048,732 - 944,732 TEQ,573 — 760,573
14
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Notes to Financial staternants for the year anded 31 Decamber 2090

Material Related Party Transactions {(continued)

Related party revenues and expenses

2020 2019
Parent Fellow Tatal Parant Fallow Total
Group Group
uso Companies Companies
Revenues
Scwﬂham s e RO 220,000 = 215,000 215,000
Tatal revenues - 220,000 220,000 - 215,000 215,000

Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management persannel (USD) 2020 2019
Shart-farm amployee banafits 107,083 106,756
Total Remuneration of key ranagement personnel 107,003 105,756

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2020, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Keng and the ultimate controling party of the Company is Credil
Suisse Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerand. Credit Suisse Group AG praduces financial
statements available for public use,

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatary for
31 December 2020 reporling pericds and have not been early adopted by the Company. These
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Subsequent Events

There have been no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial period,
which significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in fulure financial years.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 10
June 2021,

15
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PIMCO Short Term Strategy (the "Series Trust"), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at July 31, 2021, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at July 31, 2021, and its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

November 30, 2021
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 3 to 15,
which comprise:

a. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

b. the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

c. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

d. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e. the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of materia misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2021
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